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TRAVEL AND TOURISM IS OUR BUSINESS



Our Mandate
Partnership with Government
To be the government’s private sector partner in the growth
and development of travel and tourism

Commune to ALL Tourism Businesses
To be the umbrella body for all the businesses and institutions
with direct and indirect links to the sector.

Foster profitable linkages
To develop macro-economic strategies for the development
and growth of tourism to and within South Africa.

Industry Leader
To be the LEAD stakeholder in the promotion and
development of the industry.

Competitive Edge
To create intra and inter sectoral networking opportunities that
would add value for our member’s businesses.

One-stop Communications Conduit
To be a conduit for information and communications within
and outside of the industry.
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Corporate Profile

The TBCSA
Tourism Business Council of South Africa (TBCSA)
is the official umbrella body for organised business
in the South African travel and tourism industry.
The organisation was set up in 1996 by tourism
businesses, to engage with government with the
objective of creating an enabling environment for
tourism development.

•

An organisation that represents the South
African tourism private sector on macroeconomic and high-level issues that affect
business at both national and international
levels

•

An organisation that aims to ensure that
tourism business plays a constructive role in
the country’s economic development, growth
and transformation; As well as to create a
tourism environment in which businesses of all
sizes can thrive, expand and be competitive

•

A managing agent for TOMSA (Tourism
Marketing South Africa), through which the
tourism private sector contributes to the
funding of our country’s marketing budget.

We are:
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•

An organisation that is made up of members
from key travel and tourism associations,
leading tourism businesses, as well as
corporate companies who recognise the value
of tourism to the country

•

The official umbrella body for private
sector tourism businesses in South Africa,
representing the views of our members
in a number of national and international
structures and bodies such as BUSA, UNWTO
and the World Travel and Tourism Council
(WTTC)

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA

Our primary focus areas:
•

Raising funds for marketing and promotion
of destination South Africa through TOMSA –
the tourism marketing levy

•

Reducing major tourism impediments or
barriers to business – be it legislative or
otherwise
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Important focus areas:

•

Skills development and Human Resource
Development within travel and tourism

•

Propagating for the improvement of safety
and security – particularly for local and
international tourists

•

Facilitating the creating of an environment
that supports enterprise development

•

Spearheading the transformation of the travel
and tourism industry

•

Mainstreaming travel and tourism in the
broader economy

•

Developing partnerships to enhance quality
assurance and service excellence in the
industry

•

Providing leadership to the private sector in
areas such as Responsible Tourism and the
Green Economy.

•

Providing support and ensuring the
production of reliable tourism statistics

•

Developing world-class tourism standards

•

Propagating a tourism culture in South Africa

•

Creating a one-stop communication and
information conduit

•

Providing leadership in the supply side of the
industry

The TBCSA is a non-profit organisation that attracts
resources for projects that support the growth and
sustainability of the industry.
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Where do we fit in?

GOVERNMENT

BUSA

PRESS

CORPORATE
MEMBERS
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CIVIL SOCIETY

AASA

ASATA

AHI

FEDHASA

MTA

NAA-SA

NOW/ORCSA

RASA

SAACI

SALTHA

SABOA

SAVRALA

SAYTC

SATSA

VOASA
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Our Purpose, Vision and Mission

Our Purpose
To serve our Members for the purpose of
building the pride, economy and identity of
our desti(nation), now and in the future.

Our Vision
To be...the trusted, respected and informed
Voice of organised travel and tourism
business in South Africa.

Our Mission
By...engaging and influencing industry
stakeholders and Government on behalf of
organised travel and tourism business.

We use our voice to:
LISTEN: to members, government, industry, stakeholders
RESPOND: to industry issues
ADVOCACY
CLARIFYING: industry issues for members
COORDINATE AND CONTROL: industry quality, not members
MOTIVATE AND INSPIRE: ourselves, members, government,
industry, stakeholders, the nation
EMBED A SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY: amongst members

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA
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Board Chairman’s Report

“The year under review was a
difficult one for the tourism industry,
characterised by an oversupply in the
accommodation sector and continued
tough trading conditions, which again
took a toll on the domestic corporate
and leisure markets...”

Tommy Edmond

Despite this environment, the Tourism Business
Council of South Africa (TBCSA) had a productive
year and managed to achieve a number of positives.
One of these was our continued engagement with
important stakeholders in the industry including
the Department of Tourism and SA Tourism, which
enhanced existing relationships and provided
more clarity and understanding on every party’s
respective roles. During the year, the TBCSA also
strengthened the administration structures of both
the TBCSA and that of Tourism Marketing South
Africa (TOMSA).
At the 2011 annual general meeting, a new board was
voted in and I would like to take this opportunity
of thanking our old colleagues for their counsel
and guidance during their time in office, as well as
our new board members, who came together in
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a relatively short period of time and have already
made a contribution to the direction of the TBCSA.
I would also like to thank our staff and our CEO for
their continued commitment and dedication to the
TBCSA’s goals and objectives. That our membership
numbers continue to grow, despite the difficult
operating environment, is a tribute to their hard
work. Through their efforts, we are slowly realising
our vision, which is to be trusted, respected and
the informed voice of organised business in South
Africa.
Looking ahead, we don’t expect operating
conditions to improve in 2012 and industry
players will have to closely manage their margins
as increased costs, such as rates and taxes and
electricity, continue to pressure profits.
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TBCSA FNB Tourism Business Index
The Tourism Industry’s Actual Past and Expected Future Performance Indices

2010

2011

2012

Provided the rand remains soft against the US dollar and the euro, we could however see an influx
of foreign arrivals. At a TBCSA level, we need to press on in forging strong ties with government
and other industry bodies because it will only be through a joint effort that we’ll be able to grow
the industry and to deliver on our mandate.
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“The year of 2011 marked my fifth year as the
CEO of the Tourism Business Council of South
Africa. Towards the end of the year, I found
myself looking back to the day when I joined
the organization and evaluating my own
input in advancing the agenda of the TBCSA
as a collective...”

Mmatšatši Marobe

The year of 2011 marked my fifth year as the CEO
of the Tourism Business Council of South Africa.
Towards the end of the year, I found myself looking
back to the day when I joined the organization and
evaluating my own input in advancing the agenda of
the TBCSA as a collective.
I am amazed at the organisation’s milestones over
the five years. We have done much to grow and
develop the organization while trying to live up to
the expectations of our members. The past five
years have been a steep learning curve for me in
terms of understanding the workings of the supply
side of our industry. Coming from a predominantly
demand-side background it is a very different world
from the one in which the TBCSA operates.
I am grateful for the support of my colleagues in the
office, the Board and our members. Together we
have taken the TBCSA to greater heights – we have
embarked on projects such as Hotel Investment
Conference Africa (HICA) and the Tourism Business
Index (TBI), in partnership with FNB and Grant
Thornton.
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We also celebrate the close working relations
we have with member associations and with
government now that we have a dedicated tourism
Ministry. There is much to be done to further develop
and strengthen the voice of business , while at the
same time working with other stakeholders for the
overall benefit of the industry Much work remains in
terms of strengthening ties with like organizations in
Sub Saharan Africa and internationally as part of our
growth.

The State of the Industry
Looking back to the year after South Africa hosted
the first FIFA Soccer World Cup on African soil; one
is field with mixed emotions. These are emotions of a
county and an industry that has largely disappointed
the sceptics who said that South Africa would never
deliver the needs of the soccer world cup – not to
the standard that FIFA is used to. They are emotions
of an industry that is always taken for granted when
it comes to being in the forefront of delivering the
great South African experience for every business or
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leisure tourist. We now look back with absolute pride
that we delivered beyond even the expectations of
FIFA, our friends and foes, the world over.

government, particularly departments such as the
Department of Transport (DoT) and Home Affairs,
which have a direct impact on our industry.

Post-World Cup, we were left to pick up the pieces
of an event that didn’t live up to the expectations
of some businesses in addition with the economic
slump that followed. It is not as if we did not expect
the global economic meltdown to have an impact on
tourism businesses but what eventually happened
was worse than many people had predicted. We
saw many tourism operators struggling to cope with
the effects of the economic crisis, which affected
both global and domestic travel in the case of
South Africa. As the TBCSA, we were able to track
the severity of the problem through the Tourism
Business Index, which was officially brought into the
market in January 2011.

In the year under review we celebrated the second
year of NDT operating as a stand-alone entity of
government responsible for all things travel and
tourism. Furthermore, the National Tourism Sector
Strategy (NTSS) was launched. This document
was a result of collaboration between government
and business. We also engaged in meetings and
dialogue sessions with the Minister of Tourism
to address various issues affecting the industry
while at the same time working together with the
Department’s staff to implement the NTSS. It’s a
growing department with personnel going to solely
focus on our sector and we are grateful.

Following the index reports we were not surprised
to see hotels, restaurants, tour operators, travel
agencies, coach operators, guest houses and B&Bs
changing ownership or closing their doors – things
were really bad. However, hope begun to return
to the sector in the last quarter of the year with
forward bookings for the festive season, showing the
first signs of domestic travel recovery.
We also began to see an increase in bookings of
international travellers coming from our traditional
markets in Europe, UK and USA. We were beginning
to see our traditional tourists returning to South
Africa after avoiding the destination during the
Soccer World Cup. Looking at the first of quarter of
2012, the industry remains cautiously optimistic.

Relations with Government
In line with our strategic plan of 2009, the
organization continues to work closely with all arms
of the government, especially with the National
Department of Tourism (NDT) as our main partner.
We regard the NDT as our main conduit into
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We continued our efforts to forge good working
relations with the DoT considering that many of the
challenges our members face are transport-related.
From the conditions of our roads, the licensing of
tour operator vehicles and general tourism transport
issues such as the carbon emissions tax and vehicle
axle mass, to the imminent implementation of
AARTO (Administrative Adjudication of Road Traffic
Offences). Despite our efforts in collaboration with
our member associations SABOA, SATSA and
SAVRALA, not much progress has been made to
resolve some of the issues that continue to hinder
the smooth operation of the industry. This is despite
the efforts of our own Tourism Minister to facilitate
various meetings with the DoT. We remain hopeful
that the challenges will be resolved and that tourism
transport issues will once again receive attention
they require. DoT and its agencies are very critical to
the success of our sector.
Despite the challenges, we are generally pleased
with the level of collaboration across all three
spheres of government and with parastatals. Our
relationship with South African Tourism (SAT)
continues to grow with the parties finding new ways
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to collaborate in developing and growing tourism.
We continue to have formal meetings to discuss
wide-ranging issues affecting the industry and to
discuss ways to strengthen Tourism Marketing South
Africa (TOMSA) and increase the levy collection.
In view of the industry experiencing economic
difficulties we look forward to SA Tourism’s
marketing campaigns during and after the Soccer
World Cup beginning to deliver tourist arrivals,
considering the lag in international tourist arrivals.
As a sector, we were pleased with government’s
inclusion of tourism in its New Growth Path,
where it is regarded as one of the SIX-priority
sectors for driving economic growth in the
country. After our Industry Summit early in the
year, we tried to engage with the Department of
Economic Development with a view of offering
them our support and knowledge to help drive the
implementation of the New Growth Path. When
we didn’t succeed in this venture, we focused our
attention of the Planning Commission as we saw
it as the driver of economic restructuring in the
country. We bemoaned the fact that we lost out on
representation in the Planning Commission as we
saw this structure been critical to the mainstreaming
of the sector in the broader economy. We saw
this as an opportunity to have someone who will
“deepen” government’s understanding of our sector
to enable government to mobilize resources and
policies to support its growth and development.
On the other front, we continue to enjoy good
working relations with Provincial Tourism Agencies
and Local Government structures such as in
KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng. The aim is to close the
gap between the private sector at national level with
those based in provinces in the interest of growing
the sector. We know that some of the PTAs have
challenges, which we hope will be resolved to ensure
that we have equal development of the sector
throughout the country.
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Delivering on the Mandate of the
Organisation
Looking back at the year that was regarded as
one of the most challenging globally, we review
our activities with pride in many instances. This is
because the TBCSA and its member associations
continued to provide a “home” for the voice of
the private sector. This voice was used to deliver
essential messages to government and civil society
in the same way that it is delivered to the business
community itself. When it comes to speaking to the
private sector, the message was that of encouraging
the leaders and owners to embrace initiatives
such as the NTSS on issues such as the Domestic
Tourism strategy whose intention is to enable South
Africans to travel their own country, and growing
arrivals from regional markets and BRICS countries;
and supporting government’s in achieving its job
creation targets.
The message to government was delivered through
mechanisms such as media but mainly through
dialogue with the relevant people and meetings
with our Minister of Tourism. We are grateful for the
opportunities to meet with Tourism Minister and his
team to discuss the challenges faced by the sector
and ways to remedy them. We can count many
issues that were successfully addressed as a result of
the Minister’s intervention along with other officials
in government.
We have also done much work in collaboration
with other stakeholders in and out of the sector to
address other macro economic factors affecting the
industry, with progress made in many.
•

Responsible Tourism. We worked with the
National Department of Tourism and other
stakeholders to develop the standards in
responsible tourism practice in the sector and we
look forward to its implementation as we prepare
for the upsurge in demand for “responsible
tourism” products by tourists.
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•

•

•

Transformation and Empowerment. We finally
received information that the Council for the
Tourism Empowerment Council of South Africa
(TECSA) was going to be re-established after
the term of office for the previous Council was
not extended. This is positive news, as we need
a focused attention on transformation and
empowerment in the sector in line with other
sectors in the economy.
Service Excellence including quality assurance
and standards. The industry reiterated its
commitment to the implementation of the
National Tourism Service Excellence Initiative
(NTSEI ) and continuous improvement service
levels and upkeep of quality and standards.
To this end, we collaborated with the Tourism
Grading Council of SA (TGCSA) on a proposal
for the grading of game lodges. Work for this
assignment will begin in earnest in the New Year.
Airlift and Air Access. In the year under review
we continued to form part of the Department
of Transport’s bilateral meetings on aviation.
There were a number of negotiations that took
place with various countries with some of them
been critical for growing tourist arrivals into the
country. These include the negotiations with
Mozambique, Botswana, Namibia, China, Brazil,
Nigeria, and Mauritius, just to mention a few.
The outstanding negotiations are still with the
European Union considering the proposal facing
South Africa. We also continued to monitor
developments in the aviation sector especially
when it comes to whether there are increasing
or decreasing airlines serving our country, the
cost associated with the aviation sector and
aviation developments in the continent. We
noticed that due to increasing costs of operating
an airline business not only in South Africa
but globally, some airlines were re-organizing
themselves and cutting certain routes out of
their schedules, while others were increasing
their frequencies and also expanding in the
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continent. A worrying trend for local airlines is
the increasing foreign airline activity in the region
and continent in view of the “Hub and Spoke”
policy adopted by many airlines – a trend that
requires African governments to rethink their
delayed implementation of the Yamoussoukro
Declaration, if any.
•

Skills Development and Training. During the
year under review we also witnessed changes
in the SETA landscape. Our SETA, which was
focused on tourism, sport and hospitality sectors,
was expanded to include other portfolios such as
culture and arts. The industry remains supportive
of the work done by the new SETA known as
CATHSSETA.to improve skills within the sector.

•

Marketing and Promotions. We are pleased with
the agreement for all marketing and promotion
of South Africa to take place under a single
brand with common imagery of the SA Flag. We
know that this is work that has taken years to
conclude by SA Tourism, Brand SA and the nine
Provincial Tourism Authorities. We hope that
local government structures and the business
community at large will adopt this new image
and positioning of the country.

•

Knowledge Management. After a six months
piloting of the Tourism Business Index (TBI), it
was finally launched in January 2011 as part of the
Industry Summit. TBI was the perfect precursor
to the discussion on the state of industry post
the 2010 Soccer World Cup.  Although the initial
response from industry was slow, we are pleased
with its success so far.  We are equally pleased
with the coverage the project has received in
the media and its acceptance by the industry.
We know that we still have a long way to go in
ensuring that there is proper representation of
the sector in index samples and to developing
sub-indices for all the key sectors of our industry.
We are grateful for the continued partnership
with FNB and Grant Thornton in the development
of the index.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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•

Removal of Barriers to do business. During the
year under review the issues around removing
“barriers to doing business” in the sector received
much attention. This is because many businesses
found themselves not only facing increased costs
of doing business but with increased “red tape”
as a result which to a large extend affected many
small businesses. Amongst others, there was
the issue of increased airport taxes not only in
South Africa but also in source countries such as
the UK; VISA restrictions and increases in utility
costs. As a key delivery area for the TBCSA, we
will continue to monitor developments and work
with other stakeholders to lobby and influence
government policy in the interest of the sector.
We also identified the need to revisit South
Africa’s aviation policy and to harmonize the
needs of the aviation and tourism sectors.

Member Relations Function
In accordance with our mandate of being the voice
of the travel and tourism private sector, the TBCSA
saw the effect of the post Soccer World Cup slump
affecting many of its members and businesses in
general. Report after report of the Tourism Business
Index kept on showing the strain that the industry
was under. The only “light in the dark” came from
the vehicle rental and attractions segment of the
industry.
We were however fortunate not to experience
massive resignation of members during the
year under review, which was different from the
experiences of our member associations. We instead
saw the role players in the industry especially the
sectoral association rallying together to advance the
interests of their members as a collective. We hope
that the trend will continue in the years to come as
we need to have a strong private sector within the
industry.

TOMSA Management
This was the second year in which we were using the
Accpac accounting system to manage TOMSA. We
opted to use the Accpac which has made it easier
to track and record levy collections appropriately.
As this was a new system for the organization, we
embarked on an extended training programme for
the two personnel who were assigned to work on
TOMSA at the time. It was also at the same time
that we were going through the “teething” stages of
working with a new banking partner, i.e. FNB.
Although 2011 was a bad year for many businesses in
the sector, we however managed to reach our overall
year-end target in terms of levy collections, even
though it was still from a low base.
With the focus for the rest of the year devoted to
growing the levy collector base, we finally employed
a dedicated staff member for this task. After six
months of been in the job, much work was done on
improving the administration and record keeping
of TOMSA. This includes making sure that all levy
collectors have valid contracts or agreements and
updating our database our contact databases to
ensure that we have updated information about
people in the companies collecting and paying the
levies. Lastly, we began work on the Awareness
Campaign and expanding the levy collector base.
The strategy included working with Local Tourism
Associations (LTAs) across the country, Tour
Operators, South African Tourism and the Grading
Council (TGCSA) to collect the levies. The actual
work of implementing the LTA programme will
commence in the New Year with much focus on
increasing levy collectors.

Public Relations and
Communications
The good news of 2011 came from our work in the
PR and Communications side of our businesses and
the sector. There was much to be said about South
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Africa’s achievements of the Soccer World Cup and
the industry’s successful contribution to the hosting
of the event. Like many, we joined in the celebration
of our country and industry’s achievements and
got ready to help our members to leverage for that
success. They key highlights of our work include the
coverage generated for the Tourism Business Index
(TBI), which reflected the good returns associated
with the Soccer World Cup period on 2010. We
collected the data in 2010 as part of piloting the
Index ahead of its official launch and introduction on
January 18, 2011.  
Once launched, the uptake of the Index was slow
at first but then took off thus helping us in securing
consistent support for the rest of the year.
We also revamped both the TBCSA and TOMSA
website to make them more attractive and
informative. It is still work in progress as we put
more work into making it one of the “must visit”
tourism business website in the country and region.
Our intention is to have information that will be
helpful to business people wanting to do business in
the travel and tourism space in South Africa.
We continued our work on mainstreaming travel
and tourism in the broader economy and society.
Our biggest challenge remain that of the knowledge
amongst journalists and media people about our
sector and we hope that we perseverance and focus,
we will secure partnership in the media to support
this important course.

Stakeholder Relations
We began the year with the first ever industry
summit to assess the worrying “state of the
industry” in the aftermath of the Soccer World Cup.
The summit was an important platform for private
and public sector to get together, facing up to the
challenges facing the sector and agreeing on ways
to address them. This then led to various meetings
with our key stakeholders in government including
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the National Department of Tourism and the Tourism
Minister in particular and other entities.
As with other sectors, our SETA was expanded to
become CATHSSETA, with culture and arts added
to the portfolio. Through our member associations,
we remained close to the work they do and will
continue to do so with a view of addressing the
ongoing skills development issues affecting our
sector.
We also entered a new era in our relationship with
South African Tourism under Thandiwe January
–Mclean as the Chief Executive officer. An era
characterized by open communication and mutual
respect and cooperation. We look forward to this
relationship continuing in the New Year under
the guidance of Thulani Nzima as the new Chief
Executive Officer.
Another key objective in the New Year is to explore
ways to work with Provincial Tourism Agencies and
their private sector counterparts that are not part of
the established industry formations. We also want
to reach out to local government structures since
this is where tourism businesses reside and do their
business.

Strategic Tourism Projects
The organization by its nature gets involved in
many initiatives, some of which become fullyfledged projects with the life of their own. When an
initiative takes the form of a project, it would have
reached a stage where it is able to operate on its
own funding and is subsequently able to generate
income and contribute it to the organisation. Two
of the initiatives that have grown to such status
though not all able to generate income, are HICA
and the Tourism Business Index (TBI). We planned to
launch a Combined Industry Conference (CiC) in late
October 2011 as one of the initiatives to reach the
self-standing stage for the five participating member
associations (FEDHASA, SATSA, ASATA, NAA-SA
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and SAVRALA). However, the event was postponed
to 2012 due to tight timeline in its preparations.

within the industry and in the media space, for the
media to cover its results consistently.

Hotel Investment Conference Africa
(HICA)

Financial Management

Our first HICA event to be linked to the annual
Tourism Indaba has held at the Fairmont Zimbali
Resort in Ballito, from 11 to 13 May 2011. The setting
could not have been more appropriate for our first
event in the coastal city of Durban as a lead up to
the industry’s annual trade show.
We are immensely grateful for the support by
our KwaZulu-Natal partners - KZN Tourism
Authority and Trade and Investment KZN led by
the Honourable MEC Micheal Mabuyakhulu of the
Department of Economic Development and Tourism.
We plan to continue hosting the conference before
Indaba, as we believe there is a natural synergy
between the Tourism Indaba and HICA.

Tourism Business Index (TBI)
As planned, we finally launched the Tourism
Business Index on January, 18 amidst raging
discussions on the “State of the Travel and Tourism
Industry” after the Soccer World Cup. The Index
released on the day, clearly showed the stress that
the industry was under and was also able to show
future prospects for all to see.
We had a major take-off with many businesses
choosing to support the index and using its results.
However, from day one, our major challenge was
that of ensuring consistent participation in the
survey and inability to produce other sub indexes
other than accommodation. We are however
mindful that more people need to know and get
used to the index for them to support it. We are
putting resources on the projects together with our
partners, FNB and Grant Thornton. Our major focus
area in the New Year will be on entrenching the TBI
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The year was most difficult for many in our industry
as it was in the other sectors of the economy.
The organisation’s finances continued to be in a
good state throughout the year, looking at our
three sources of funding - TBCSA Membership
fees, Strategic project leveraging and fund raising
through the TOMSA Levy Contributions. This was
due to management’s stringent diligence with the
organisation’s expenses, payment of membership
fees, and levy collections.
While the individual businesses were experiencing
low occupancies and patronage, trade organizations
such as the TBCSA’s member associations were
experiencing a decrease in member subscription.
We were however spared this phenomenon and
instead we gained members. The growth was mainly
from the member associations that were not part of
the TBCSA collective.
We were also able to leverage our meagre funds to
deliver on certain projects in partnership with other
stakeholders in the sector, which boosted our overall
finances. This is after all, how organization such as
ours can survive – there has to be an element of
fund raising though it should be through clever and
tactical activities that also delivers on the mandate
of the organization.
We also didn’t experience much of a decline in the
collection of the tourism levy although we lost levy
collectors throughout the year. Although we finally
employed the services of a full-time Sales and
Marketing Manager for TOMSA, the final count at the
end of the year revealed that we didn’t loose levy
collectors but didn’t grow the base with a bigger
margin.
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Office Administration

Conclusion

On the overall, this was a busy year for the
organization. As mentioned in preceding sections,
we introduced Accpac as the accounting software
for TOMSA and watched the brilliant results
associated with having a proper administration
system unfold. We were now looking forward
to knowing how much and how often each levy
collector was collecting and paying the levy
collections to TOMSA. For the first time we could
produce reports such as the frequency report for
each levy collector – something that essential for the
management of an initiative such as TOMSA.

Our appreciation as a team goes to the colleagues
in the CEOs Forum, whom we try to meet every
second month. We learn a lot about the goings of
the industry from them through their reports and
in the discussions in the meetings. We also thank
the TOMSA and TBCSA Board Members whose
guidance helps us to achieve on our set objectives
and tasks. We thank our partners who take our
hands to deliver on projects such as HICA and TBI.

Unlike in previous years when we experienced
many challenges with the security of our office
equipments, we have now moved to always update
our risk profile and readiness. We have moved to
address many of the challenges including also
making sure that the organisation is modernized
from an operational point of view.

Finally, we thank our members and levy collectors
and trust that they will continue to support our work
as we try to deliver on been the “trusted, respected
and knowledgeable voice of the private sector” in
the travel and tourism industry.

On the human resources front, we continue to pride
ourselves with an office that is run and manage
a small but dedicated team. As the workload
continues to increase, we hope to introduce
additional resources to help though we may opt to
outsource and collaborate with others instead of
insourcing.
We are forever grateful for the support of colleagues
in the CEOs Forum and the Board. It is through their
guidance and collaboration that the team is able to
achieve on many of the set objectives.

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA
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Strategic Projects Report
Wisani Nyamazane Chief Operations Officer

An Overview
The 2011 year has been an intricate one for the travel
and tourism industry in South Africa. Although it is
one of the largest industries in the world, travel and
tourism was not immune to the effect of the global
economic slump.
The recession had a significant impact on our
industry, more especially on foreign tourism arrivals
to South Africa. This was even evident from the
industry’s economic indicator, TBCSA FNB Tourism
Business Index (TBI).
The index showed a steady decline in business
performance throughout the year but it was
encouraging to see the industry’s mood remaining
resilient and optimistic the whole time.

Strategic Planning for the
Tourism Sector
In 2011 we saw the official launch of the National
Tourism Sector Strategy – NTSS.  
One of the key focus areas of the NTSS is the
development of a regional and domestic tourism
strategy. To this effect a draft document on this
issue has been developed through a collaborative
effort between the public sector (represented by
the National Department of Tourism) and the private
sector (represented by the TBCSA other individual
associations).
This new focus on the regional and domestic
markets is a clear indicator of how the industry
needs to embrace a new tourism culture where notwithstanding the global economic downturn - it
cannot continue to be business as usual.
Simply put, the focus of the tourism industry in
South Africa has historically been intentionally
focused and narrow. As a consequence, the industry
fell far short of its potential to cater for the domestic
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market, contributing to the local economy, both
as a generator of revenue and of job creation. We
need to start actively engaging these markets and
developing suitable packages which still offer value
for money. A renewed focus on these markets might
just be industry’s solution for sustaining growth in
the long-term.

Forging Strong Alliances
The TBCSA has managed to maintain sound
relations with another key stakeholder, South African
Tourism. The constructive and cooperative relations
between the two organisations are critical to future
of the industry.
In addition, we are delighted to report positive
progress in establishing the TBCSA as an inclusive
voice of travel and tourism organised business.
This is evident from the introduction of two new
membership categories, effective from January 2012,  
aimed at embracing smaller industry associations, as
well as SMMES’s as we strive to grow our sector.
This shift towards a more accessible, inclusive
organization, with a wider reach is part of the efforts
to bring all the players in the tourism private sector
under one umbrella that will be recognised by the
government, media and the general public.
As we forge ahead in the year 2012, we remain
committed to being the voice of the travel organized
business. We proceed from the understanding that
without one voice to represent the industry, there
can be no popular participation. There are many
threads in the fabric of advocacy and lobbying for
a common cause. In the course of weaving these
threads together, lumbering knots will form time to
time. In each area of work that has been targeted,
the ideal state remains a distant objective, but what
is critical is that progress is being made. It is the
spirit of cooperation that will determine how we
move forward and achieve a brighter future of our
vision.
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Key Macro-Economic Factors Affecting
Travel and Tourism

KEY MACRO-ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING TRAVEL & TOURISM
1 TOURISM
MARKETING
INTELLIGENCE

Not prepared to become complacent, TBCSA will continue to invest substantially
towards obtaining tourism marketing intelligence crucial for the enhancement
of our members’ knowledge, allowing them to play smarter role in the tourism
environment both locally, regionally and globally. We continue to forge closer ties
with various organisations to ensure the identification of leading practices and
facilitating their adoption for the development of the travel and tourism industry.

2 SKILLS
DEVELOPMENT

As an organisation, TBCSA recognises that there is a positive correlation between
skills and education profile and the ability to become a productive player in
the economy. The process of strengthening skills in the sector received much
attention from both the private and public sector in the year under review.
The challenge remains the promotion of collaborative effort, staying on
course and keep focused in the up-skilling of our industry workforce. Through
the Tourism Career Guidance (TCG), initiative TBCSA continues striving for
skills development through hosting workshops aimed at showcasing career
opportunities in the travel and tourism sector. Targeted mainly at institutions
of higher learning, this initiative keep at facilitating networking platforms that
encourages engagement between students, academics and leaders of the
industry.

3 RESPONSIBLE
TOURISM

In our endeavor to grow this industry, TBCSA will continue promoting (to our
members and other stakeholders) sustainable and responsible tourism practices.
Around the world, tourism destinations are facing increasing pressures on their
natural, cultural and socio-economic environments. The travel and tourism
private sector in South Africa has made significant strides (in recent years) in
caring for the environment. The sector is sincerely committed to conserving
natural resources, reducing energy requirements, managing waste production
and recycling, using environmentally friendly products as well as sourcing locally
produced goods.
TBCSA reinforces these initiatives and efforts undertaken by the private sector
in managing their businesses sustainably. The TBCSA message has always been
clear: “Responsible Tourism is about putting back into travel and tourism what you
get out of it”

4 SAFETY &
SECURITY

The area of safety and security in the travel and tourism industry still requires a
lot of attention from both the private and public sector. TBCSA continue working
with SATSA on the Tourism Security Initiative (TSI) and other industry partners
to play a role in fighting crime within our sector. In the period under review, an
amount of R1 million was committed by the TBCSA to ensuring the success of this
project.
The hurdles are clearly surmountable, but require a multi-level partnership
between public, coupled with some level of dedication and commitment from all
stakeholders.  More importantly, we need to see the bigger picture of our vision –
that crime is an endemic problem for business South Africa.

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA
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KEY MACRO-ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING TRAVEL & TOURISM
5 EMPOWERMENT &
TRANSFORMATION

The Tourism BEE scorecard is a great mechanism with which to address issues
of transformation and empowerment in the tourism industry.  However, for this
initiative to succeed, greater commitment is required at all levels, especially from
the empowerment players themselves.
Although most stakeholders readily accept these elements as critical to the
process of comprehensively integrating previously disadvantaged people into the
mainstream of the tourism economy, the greater emphasis has historically been
put on ownership.  However, the “ownership only” version of BEE needs to be
underpinned by HR policies as well as procurement and enterprise development
policies which will allow businesses to be truly transformational. The facilitators of
empowerment initiatives, especially financiers and established businesses, have
to commit to the fact that control of a business thus created does not only vest in
the visible board arena, but also migrates down to managerial and to operational
levels.

6 INVESTMENT &
PROMOTION

The Tourism Business Council also exists to advocate, and influence on behalf
of our member, the regional and national debates on economic and investment
issues pertinent to the South African travel and tourism industry.
In the period under review, this entailed a significant co-ordination component
of TBCSA’s member’s inputs into various debates and policy documents, such
as the Tourism Draft Bill. The underlying purpose has always been to lobby for
an “enabling economic and investment environment”, conducive to member
interest. TBCSA also recognize that advocacy function extends beyond lobbying
government. Other stakeholder relations remain critical for the organization in
our quest to facing the economic challenges as a unified front.

7 TRANSPORT
– LAND & AIR
ACCESS

With air access as a critical key to growing the travel and tourism sector, our
activities for 2011 were more focused on achieving industry representation in
structures to influence government’s bilateral negotiations when implementing
the aviation policy.
In terms of land transport, there have been some concerning developments
relating to the introduction of new legislation such as AARTO (Administrative
Adjudication of Road Traffic Offences) and plans to introduce provincial eTolling
systems, particularly in the Gauteng Province. We continue to monitor these
developments closely as we work with our member associations SAVRALA and
SATSA to address these potential impediments.
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Finance and Administration Report
Tilly Heydenreich Chief Financial Officer

An Overview
The year under review was a difficult one, with the
global economic recession hitting South Africa and
the uncertainty in the financial markets made it
difficult for businesses to thrive.
As the TBCSA, we too experienced these challenges
as some of our members struggled to pay their
annual membership fees while others opted to
withdraw their membership as a result of the
ongoing financial strain. Similar trends were seen
on the TOMSA side, which resulted in an overall
reduction in levies collected compared to previous
years.

Financial Management
It is challenging times such as these that
organisations need to ensure optimial efficincies
in their internal processes. Thus, in the year under
review, we continued to focus on the improvement
of our financial management systems. A number
initiatives were undertaken as follows:
•

The process of obtaining tax exemption for
both the TBCSA and TOMSA is continuing;

•

The TBCSA and TOMSA are now officially
recognised by the Department of Social
Development as non- profit organisations;

•

In adherence to the regulations set out in the
new Companies Act, we proceeded to update
the Memorandum of Incorporation for both
the TBCSA and TOMSA.  This was adopted by
members of both organisations and has been
submitted to the Companies & Intellectual
Property Commission of South Africa.

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA

As mentioned previously, member administration
proved to be a real challenge.   Like in 2010, we
continued to see a trend where members where
either paying membership fees late or not paying
at all. In some cases, businesses who were owning
fees for over two or more years were written-off.
This unfortunately, resulted in a further decline in
membership fee income for the TBCSA.
On the TOMSA side, our focus was on improving
the administration of the levies in terms of ensuring
proper record keeping of levy collector’s data,
regular updating of our collector database and
following up on those who had stopped paying
levies for extended periods. In total, funds raised by
TOMSA in the 2010 and 2011 financial periods are as
follows:
Levies collected for 2010: R 97 829 460
Levies collected for 2011: R 96 183 488
A total of R91 618 816 in levies collected, was
transferred to South African Tourism in the 2011
financial period.

Office Administration and Human
Resources
We continue to ensure that our personnel are highly
motivated and work hard to deliver on the mandate
of the organisation. This is always a challenge for
the organisation of our size where all personnel need
to be highly effective and work on multiple projects
and activities.
Like all other organisations, we also suffered the loss
of staff members during the year and worked hard
to replace them with equally qualified and motivated
people.
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Following two resignations in the period under
review, the organisation’s organogram was
reconfigured as follows:
•

Mr Francois Gerber was appointed as TOMSA
Manager as from 1 June 2011 and oversees
the functions of TOMSA promotion and levy
collector relations.

•

Ms. Wisani Nyamazane was appointed as
Chief Operating Officer as from 1 September
2011 and oversees the implementation of the
TBCSA’s strategic projects.

•

Ms. Marcelle Swart was appointed as Personal
Assistant to the CEO as from 1 December 2011
and oversees the functioning of the CEOs
office and also acts as Board Secretariat.

On the office management front, we upgraded some
of our office equipment to support our personnel in
meeting their deliverables. We are pleased to note
that our relationship with our landlord at Leriba
Lodge continues to improve for the better.

Conclusion
Looking forward to the new year, we are mindful
that the economic climate will still be tough.
However, ensuring optimal efficiencies in our
internal systems will remain a top priority for us,
particularly in relation to the collection of TOMSA
levies. Furthermore, we hope to see an improvement
in the trading conditions for the travel and tourism
industry.

We will continue to operate the organisation within
a small contingent of personnel and endeavour to
collaborate more with our member associations
and other stakeholders where we require additional
support.
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Sector associations proudly affiliated to the TBCSA:

1. AASA
The Airlines Association of Southern Africa, known as AASA, is an organisation formed
to represent the mutual interests of its members.  Membership is open to all airlines based
in African countries south of the equator, including Indian Ocean Islands.  AASA interfaces
with captains of industry and senior Government officials in representing its members on all
issues of common interest to airlines. This includes policy, planning, operational, regulatory
and financial issues affecting the bottom line of the airlines and relates to airports, airspace,
civil aviation, safety and security of airline operations.

2. AHI
The Afrikaanse Handelsinstituut (AHI) has a strong reputation for service to its members,
intellectual leadership and a strong development orientation. The organization was initially
founded to empower and encourage Afrikaans businessmen. Since 1994, the organization
has broadened its national head to the diversity of the country to better reflect and promote
cooperation with other like-minded organizations such as NAFCOC at local level.

3. ASATA
The Association of South African Travel Agents (ASATA) was formed in 1956 as a
representative forum to promote professional service with security for both its members
and their clients. The ASATA membership is entirely voluntary and includes South African
Retail Travel Agents, Travel Management Companies and Wholesalers. Currently the ASATA
membership represents more than 85% of the industry.

4. FEDHASA
Since 1949 the Federated Hospitality Association of South Africa (FEDHASA) has been
representing the South African hospitality industry on a local, provincial, national and global
level to protect the interests of all stakeholders of the industry, thereby enabling members to
achieve their objectives.

5. MTA
The Medical Tourism Association (MTA) is a trade association representing the medical,
health and wellness tourism industry.  The MTA offers its members integration through
established associations representing each sector’s uniqueness and value, open channels
for dialogue and collaboration and raises awareness about the various issues affecting the
industry.

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA
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6. NAA-SA
The National Accommodation Association (NAA) is a growing network of quality smaller
accommodation providers around South Africa. The organization boasts membership of over
1000 quality inspected members nationwide.

7. NOW/ORCSA
The Off-Road Council of South Africa (previously called National Off-Road Working
Group) is a Section 21 Company set up by the off-road community (off-road users, guides
and tour operators, trainers, trail owners, and related businesses) in 2005.  The main aim
of the organisation is to address challenges and industry concerns over the impact caused
by off-road vehicles (vehicles / bikes / quads).  Key objectives include minimising the
environmental impact and ensuring environmental sustainability, stimulating the growth of
off-road tourism and to increase the socio-economic benefits generated by the off-road
industry.

8. RASA
The Restaurant Association of South Africa (RASA) is a non-profit organisation promoting
a pro-restaurant agenda on critical restaurant issues like smoking, liquor legislation, food
safety, and employment.

9. SAACI
The Southern African Association for the Conference Industry (SAACI) is dedicated
to maintaining and improving the standards of efficiency and professionalism for the
conference and events industry in southern Africa. The association comprises over 1 250
members from a variety of sectors within the conference industry, including conference
venues, conference and event organisers and a large variety of service providers such as
audio visual, entertainment, decor, catering services and many more.

10. SABOA
The Southern African Bus Operators’ Association (SABOA) has become known and
respected as the voice of the bus industry. The association represents its members at
national and provincial level with government and fulfils a watchdog function regarding
policy and legislation, facilitates training for its SMME members and negotiates benefits
for its members. SABOA has gone through a three phase transformation process that has
resulted in its representation of about 76% of the public transport bus fleet.
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11. SATSA
The Southern African Travel Services Association (SATSA) is a member-driven, non-profit
association representing the private sector. The association represents transport providers,
tour operators, destination management companies, accommodation suppliers, tourism
brokers, adventure tourism providers, business tourism providers and tourism services
provides. The organization offers the inbound tourism industry unequalled opportunities for
networking.

12. SAVRALA
The Southern African Vehicle Rental Association (SAVRALA) is a trade association
representing Southern Africa’s combined vehicle rental, leasing and fleet management
industries. It has a combined membership base of some 60 companies inclusive of a number
of associate members comprising motor manufacturers and allied industry sales and service
companies. SAVRALA strives to ensure and protect its members’ interests at the highest
level.

13. SAYTC
Formerly, Backpacking South Africa (BSA), the South African Youth Travel Confederation
is a formation that combines the concepts of backpacking and youth tourism. SAYTC is a
non-profit, whose membership comprise of four sectors – backpacking, education, tours
and transport as well as volunteering. The association’s membership includes members from
neighbouring Southern African countries, Lesotho, Namibia and Zambia.

14. SALTHA
The South African Leisure, Tourism and Hospitality Association (SALTHA) was originally
founded in 1978 as the National Tavanier’s Association. The association has since broadened
its scope to include the Travel and Tourism sector.  SALTHA is an affiliate of the National
NACFOC and a founder member of Business Unity South Africa (BUSA).

15. VOASA
Vacation Ownership Association of South Africa (VOASA), previously known as the
Timeshare Institute of Southern Africa, was established in 1990 as an organization
representing the interests of the respective stakeholders with its primary objective being
to “create, maintain and develop an environment within which the long-term viability and
growth of vacation ownership through shared vacation ownership can be optimally ensured.”
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Boitumelo Moleleki  Member Relations and Events Coordinator

An Overview
The 2011 year has been an intricate one for the travel
and tourism industry in South Africa. Although it is
one of the largest industries in the world, travel and
tourism was not immune to the effect of the global
economic slump.
Through partnership and collaboration with various
stakeholders, the TBCSA continues to play a critical
role in the development of the travel and tourism
sector. It is our openness to consult and collaborate
that has strengthened our relationship with our
members; moreover it has given shape to a number
of successful initiatives which were undertaken in
the period under review and have.

Member Relations
Similar to other business sectors, travel and tourism
industry continues to feel the negative effects of the
ongoing, global economic recession. And, as far as
TBCSA member relations are concerned, this has
been aptly demonstrated through the results of the
Tourism Business Index and more directly through
membership resignations. In the year under review,
we saw a number of small operators who, in a bid to
stay afloat decided to opt out of direct affiliation to
the TBCSA.
Despite the resignations, we are pleased to report
that our membership continues to be on the rise.
The TBCSA currently boasts membership of 15
strong national sector associations and 40 corporate
business entities. This includes the following
organisations that joined the TBCSA in 2011:
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•

Expedia

•

Imperial Tourism

•

Airline Association of Southern Africa (AASA)

•

The National Off-Road Working Group
(NOW/ORCSA)
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In another exciting development, two new
membership categories will be introduced in 2012.  
They are the Limited Membership category and
Affiliate Membership category. This is an effort to
ensure that the TBCSA membership profile is as
representative of the industry as possible.

Stakeholder Engagement and Events
Part of our work as a corporate association involves
creating platforms for industry engagement – in
2011, we participated in as well as hosted a number
of events as follows:

Travel and Tourism Industry Summits
Post the 2010 Soccer World Cup and amid global
economic recession, the TBCSA hosted two industry
summits. The summits involved leaders from both
public and private sectors who deliberated on
the challenges faced by the sector. Key topics of
discussion included:
•

Assessing the current occupancy levels &
tourist arrivals in South Africa

•

Challenges facing the sector such as – cost of
doing business in the sector; prices and rates
of product and services such as room rates,
flights and land transport

•

Exploring possible approaches for business to
deal with the challenges

It is not expected that solutions to these challenges
will be found overnight and the TBCSA continues to
engage with its key stakeholders and members on
these issues.

TBCSA-TEP Information sharing workshop
The growth and development of small, medium and
micro-enterprises in travel and tourism is essential
for the overall development of the industry. To
this end, the TBCSA hosted an information sharing
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session in partnership with the Tourism Enterprise
Program (TEP). Through this workshop, TEP was
able to present some of their enterprise support
programmes to TBCSA member associations and
share detailed information about their progress. All
TBCSA member associations have committed to
working closely with TEP and to support the various
initiatives.

TBCSA/TOMSA Annual General Meetings
As we do on an annual basis, the TBCSA held its 15th
Annual General Meeting on 4 August 2011.  Once
again, economic challenges faced by the sector
dominated discussions.
A key highlight of the AGM was the election of a
new Board for the TBCSA. Again the key objective
was to ensure that travel and tourism industry is as
widely represented as possible. It is pleasing to note
that the Board now includes representation from the
airline sector in the form of the Airline Association of
Southern Africa (AASA) and South African Airways
(SAA).

Annual TOMSA Road Shows
The annual TOMSA road shows are another
important aspect of our stakeholder engagement
programme.  Here we partner with SA Tourism
and take to the road to interact with TOMSA
levy collectors and give them feedback on the
performance of TOMSA and the marketing activities
undertaken by SA Tourism.

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA

Trade Shows and Exhibitions
Tourism Indaba
The TBCSA presence at Tourism Indaba has become
much more significant over the years.  However,
more significant is the fact that we have the
opportunity to share the Indaba platform with our
member associations. In the period under review,
we were joined by three of our member associations,
FEDHASA, SAVRALA and SALTHA on the TBCSA/
TOMSA stand.  
Cognisant of the complexities of the Consumer
Protection Act which had been passed, we decided
to use the Indaba platform to also run a workshop
on how the act would have an impact on businesses
in the travel and tourism sector.

Conclusion
TBCSA will continue to ensure that business plays
a constructive role in the country’s economic
growth, development, transformation and to
create an environment in which travel and tourism
businesses of all sizes can thrive, expand and remain
competitive.
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Kagiso Mosue PR & Communication Coordinator

An Overview

to also receive feedback direct feedback from the
members.

The year under review proved to be a challenging
one for the global travel and tourism trade,
characterised by economic uncertainty in the US
and Euro-zone, which largely influenced global
consumer travel patterns and forced businesses to
review their operations.
Locally the travel and tourism landscape also
underwent some changes: in the private sector, a
number of hospitality properties exchange hands
as businesses adopted different strategies to stay
afloat, whilst in the public sector we saw release of
the Tourism Draft Bill for public comment and the
launch of a new National Tourism Sector Strategy
(NTSS).

Publicity & Public Relations
Events and Strategic Projects Support
Our PR approach is largely based on the objective of
profiling and mainstreaming the travel and tourism
as an important economic sector. In the period
under review, we were involved in promoting and
profiling a number of events and strategic projects
initiated by the TBCSA.
-

Through PR and Communication, the TBCSA
ensured that members and the wider industry are
kept abreast of the various industry developments
and the organisation has played a leading role in
ensuring that the industry continues to speak with
a unified voice when it comes to issues affecting
tourism trade.

Communication

-

Electronic communication continues to play a
central role in the TBCSA’s communication strategy.
In terms of online communication, we continued
identify ways to optimise the website visitor
experience, upgrading certain aspects of the TBCSA
and TOMSA sites to make it easier for the public to
access and download information about the travel
and tourism industry and the work of the TBCSA.
When it comes to direct communication with
members, we have diversified our communication
tools by adding member alert e-mailers, which
enables us to bring specific information to the
members’ attention quickly and timeously.  The key
advantage of these e-mailers is the ability for us
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HICA 2011
2011 proved to be significant one for the Hotel
Investment Conference Africa (HICA) as one of
the key strategic projects of the TBCSA.
Not only did we move to position HICA alongside
the the annual Tourism Indaba by hosting the
event in Durban for the very first time, but we
also worked closely with a new partner to expand
the brand to North Africa, through the hosting
of HICA Morocco.  The success of both events
is pleasing. The event has become a ‘must
attend’ for all with interest in the hotel and wider
hospitality industry.
AGMs and Industry Summits
Considering the distressed climate under which
business was operating, the TBCSA hosted two
industry summits in 2011.  The main aim of the
industry summits, was to create a platform for
engagement between the public and private
sector on possible solutions to the challenges
faced by the industry.
The first summit was held early in the year, linked
with the launch of the first Tourism Business
Index report, whilst the second summit was
linked with the TBCSA and TOMSA Annual
General Meetings. In both cases the role of
PR and Communications was to consolidate
the outcomes of the summits, and share the
feedback with the rest of the industry and the
public at large.
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-

Tourism Business Index (TBI)
In partnership with First National Bank and Grant
Thornton, the first official Tourism Business
Index report was published in January 2011.  
The publishing of this inaugural report and
three quarterly reports which followed have
played a significant role in contextualising the
state of travel and tourism business in terms of
performance in the 2011 period.

Although there are still technical challenges in
ensuring that contributions to the index remain
consistent the index remains a significant milestone
for the TBCSA and the industry.
Other projects where we continued to play to play
a supportive role includes the promotion of TOMSA
and the annual TOMSA road shows.

Media Relations
The changes in the local tourism landscape have
received wide coverage in the trade and mainstream
media; however the TBCSA has also continued
to use the media platform to share views on a
number of issues concerning the industry – from
commenting on the State of the Nation Address to
welcoming the news of Table Mountain’s new status
as one of the Seven Wonders of Nature.
It must be noted that the TBI has become a valuable
tool for media to keep abreast of developments in
the travel and tourism industry. We are pleased to
note the particular interest of business media in the
index.
Lastly the TBCSA member associations have also
played a significant role in creating a voice for
travel and tourism trade in the media space, with
associations such as ASATA, SATSA and SAVRALA
sharing their perspective on various sector-related
issues.
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Another significant development as far as Media
Relations is concerned is the TBCSA’s development
of an industry crisis management strategy. We
are pleased to report that the industry now has a
crisis communications process in place. In the New
Year aim to expand this to effectively become an
overall industry response mechanism which also
outlines a consolidated approach to other elements
such as issue management, reputation and disaster
management.

Stakeholder Relations
Part of our function as PR and Communication is
to represent the TBCSA in the National Tourism
Department’s Tourism Communicators Forum.  
Participating in this forum has been fruitful that
it ensures that we are informed of the various
initiatives undertaken by the department and we are
able to sensitise our members of these initiatives.

Looking forward to 2012
Looking ahead to the new financial period, our
activities will mostly focus on implementing some
of the strategies and plans which were initiated in
2011.  These include finding a practical approach for
industry crisis management, in collaboration with
our public sector stakeholders, seeking ways to
bolster our relationship with trade and mainstream
and lastly embracing social media.
The year under review has certainly been a difficult
one to the industry, however, we can now look
forward to the New Year with renewed hope
that the cycle will begin to turn. From a PR and
Communication perspective, we remain committed
to building a strong, positive profile for the TBCSA
and the industry as a whole.
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The year 2011 was a remarkable one which saw the TBCSA hosting of two
HICA events in May and September:
HICA South Africa, 5-6 May 2011
In partnership with the KwaZulu-Natal Department
of Economic Development and Tourism, Trade and
Investment KwaZulu-Natal as well as marketing
organisation, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, HICA South
Africa was held on 5 and 6 May at the Fairmont
Zimbali Resort.
The event was officially opened by the Honourable
MEC for Economic Development and Tourism in
KwaZulu-Natal, Mr. Mike Mabuyakhulu who gave a
rousing address on the value of travel and tourism to
the province’s and country’s economy.
Inspired by the theme “Taking Stock”, delegates
used the HICA platform to deliberate on the
industry’s status quo post the 2010 FIFA Soccer
World Cup, and amid the ongoing global economic
recession.
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Although the event took place over one and a
half days, the combination of plenary and breakway sessions continued to be a winning formula.
The outcomes of a post-event survey show that
52% of delegates found the sessions appropriate
and informative. Furthermore, a large majority
of respondents cited their satisfaction with the
conference speakers and the topics discussed.

Alignment of HICA and the Tourism
INDABA
One of the motivating factors for hosting HICA in
the province of KwaZulu-Natal was the opportunity
to align the event to one of the continent’s largest
trade marketing shows – the Tourism Indaba.
By aligning these two events, once again, value is
generated for HICA delegates and Indaba exhibitors
alike – following a similar trend as done in Germany
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Hotel Investment Conference Africa

with the International Hotel Investment Conference
and ITB.

HICA Tourism Business Leadership
Award 2011
HICA Awards honour and recognise companies and/
or individuals who make extraordinary contributions
to uplifting the profile of the travel and tourism
sector. Considering that this year’s HICA had a
packed, two-day programme, instead of the usual
two-and-a-half days, the awards adjudication team
chose to focus only on one award category – the
HICA Tourism Business Leadership Award
This honour was conveyed to Clifford Ross, Chief
Executive Officer of the City Lodge Hotel Group,
who was named the 2011 HICA Business Leadership
Award winner.

HICA Morocco, 26 – 27
September 2011
In another exciting development, the TBCSA joined
forces with UK-based Bench Events to extend the
HICA brand to other regions in the Africa – more
specifically to North Africa.
HICA Morocco took place on 26 and 27 September
2011, at the Hyatt Regency Hotel in Casablanca.  The
event was supported by the Moroccan Agency for
Tourism Development, an organisation which also
promotes investment and encourages public-private
initiatives in Morocco.  Like in South Africa, the event
attracted a large number of business leaders from
the hospitality and wider tourism sector.

Finalists for this award category included, Linda
Pampallis - CEO of Thompsons Africa and Graham
Wood – CEO of Southern Sun Hotels, Inns and
Resorts.  
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2012 Consolidated Activity Plan

BROAD STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVES

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVES

KEY DELIVERY
PILLARS

PLANNED
ACTIVITIES

TIMELINE

GOAL 1: MEMBERSHIP STRENGTH
To develop and
sustain the strength
of our Membership
for the benefit of
organised business
and the tourism
industry as a whole

To grow the
TBCSA to be an
inclusive voice
for the travel and
tourism industry

Membership
Management

• Roll-out of new
membership
categories – Limited
Membership &
Affiliate Membership
• Finalization &
Implementation of
TBCSA Member
Code of Conduct
• Augment member
benefits and
introduce a new
member relations
system

January

March

July

GOAL 2: MARKETING & COMMUNICATION
To embed TBCSA
as the trusted and
respected voice
of authority for
organised business
amongst Government
and the wider
industry.

To communicate
to and with
members, the
broader industry
and the public on
the key salient
issues pertaining
to the industry

PR &
Communication

To position
TBCSA as a
key source of
tourism business
intelligence
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• Review electronic
communication
tools which will
assist in positioning
the organisation
as a key source
of information for
industry and the
wider public
• Launch of  the
Tourism Business
Africa magazine
• Incorporation
of social media
platforms
• Development of a
comprehensive crisis
management system
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BROAD STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVES

MEASURABLE
OBJECTIVES

KEY DELIVERY
PILLARS

PLANNED
ACTIVITIES

TIMELINE

GOAL 3: LOBBYING, INFLUENCE & ADVOCACY
To be recognised as,
and effectively act as,
the voice of authority
for organised
business.

To contribute
strategically
towards the
transformation
of the tourism
industry by
initiating and
supporting
projects create
a positive profile
for the TBCSA
and tourism as an
industry, create
value of members
generates
income for the
organisation.

Strategic Projects
Management

Oversee the successful May-October
delivery of the
following events:
• HICA 2012
• Tourism Leadership
Dialogue
• Tourism Career
Guidance
Workshops
• SA Tourism Business
Exchange
Oversee the successful
management of the
following projects:
• SMME
Empowerment
• Project Information
Hub
• Tourism Business
Index
• PPP Projects

GOAL 4: TOMSA
To grow TOMSA’s
levy collection and
collector base

To grow the
TOMSA levy
collector base in
terms of numbers,
spread and rand
value

TOMSA
Promotion &
Administration

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA

• Roll-out of the levy
collector expansion
programme
• Roll-out of the
TOMSA Awareness
Campaign
• Appointment of
sales agents to sign
up new collectors
and promote the
project
• Host annual TOMSA
Feedback Road
Shows
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Tommy Edmond
Board Chairman and
CEO TOURVEST

Graham Wood
Deputy Board Chairman and
MD Southern Sun Hotels

Nils Heckscher
Board Chairman TOMSA and
MC Winchester Mansions

Mmatšatši Marobe
CEO, TBCSA

Michael Tatalias
CEO, SATSA

Robyn Christie
CEO, ASATA

Clifford Ross
CEO, City Lodge Hotels

Jaco Venter
National Director, NOW/ORCSA

Glenn Phillips
Managing Executive, SANParks

Ross Kata 		
Regional Director-Africa,
EXPEDIA

Brett Dungan
CEO, FEDHASA

Dr. Salifou Siddo
CEO, TEP
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Paul Pauwen
GM, SAVRALA

Caroline Ungersbock
President, NAA-SA

Bart Bender
CEO, ProServ International

Adene Pringle
GM, SAACI

Chris Zweigenthal
CEO, AASA

Jennifer Seif
CEO, FTTSA

Churcill Mrasi
President, SALTHA

Pieter de Bruin
Head of Industry Sales, FNB

Gavin Eyre		
MD, SAYTC

Marylin Lewis
CEO, Thebe Tourism

Charl Fouche
National Chairman:Tourism
Committee, AHI

Theunis Potgieter
GM:Commercial Operations,
SAA
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TRAVEL AND TOURISM IS OUR BUSINESS

When it comes to the

business of travel and tourism the Tourism Business

Council of South Africa is the unifying factor. In partnership with our national

member associations and corporate businesses, we seek to lobby and positively
influence decisions and policies in the interest of the sector’s growth and development.

Our voice is your business, join now!
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Annual Financial Statements

The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial
statements presented to the members:

INDEX
Report of the Independent Auditors

36

Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval

38

Directors’ Report

39

Statement of Financial Position

41

Statement of Comprehensive Income

41

Statement of Changes in Equity

42

Statement of Cash Flows

42

Accounting Policies

43

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

46

The following supplementary information does not form part of the annual
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financial statements and is unaudited:
52

Detailed Income Statement
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Report of the Independent Auditors

To the members of TOURISM
BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH
AFRICA (INCORPORATED
UNDER SEC 21)
We have audited the financial statements of
TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH
AFRICA (INCORPORATED UNDER SEC 21), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2011, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes, as set out on pages
43 to 51.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with South African
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and in the manner required by the
Companies Act of South Africa. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatements.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH
AFRICA (INCORPORATED UNDER SEC 21) as at 31
December 2011, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with South African Statements of Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, and in the manner
required by the Companies Act of South Africa.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention
to the fact that the company applied in December
2003 to the South African Revenue Services to
obtain tax exemption status under section 10(1)(e)
of the Income Tax Act. In the event of the South
African Revenue Services not giving exemption, an
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estimated liability of R6 573 130 (including penalties
and interest) will be incurred by the company. The
financial statements at the moment do not include
the recognition of the South African Revenue
Services liability (refer to note 7).

Supplementary information
We draw attention to the fact that the
supplementary information set out in Annexure 1
does not form part of the financial statements and
is presented as additional information. We have
not audited this information and accordingly do not
express an opinion thereon.

TENK LOUBSER & ASSOCIATES
Registered Auditors
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)
Per:  M.A. Oberholzer
Director
Johannesburg
02 February 2012
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Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are required to maintain adequate
accounting records and are responsible for the
content and integrity of the annual financial
statements and related financial information
included in this report. It is their responsibility to
ensure that the annual financial statements fairly
present the state of affairs of the Company as at
the end of the financial year and the results of
its operations and cash flows for the period then
ended, in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards. The external auditors are
angaged to express an independent opinion on the
annual financial statements.						
The annual financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and are based upon appropriate
accounting policies consistently applied and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates.				
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately
responsible for the system of internal financial
control established by the Company and place
considerable importance on maintaining a strong
control environment. To enable the directors to
meet these responsibilities, the Company sets
standards for internal control aimed at reducing
the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner.
The standards include the proper delegation of
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level
of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the
directors and all employees are required to maintain
the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
Company’s business is conducted in a manner that
in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the Company is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring
all known forms of risk across the Company. While
operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the
Company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and
ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the
information and explanations given by management,
that the system of internal control provides
reasonable assurance that the financial records
may be relied on for the preparation of the annual
financial statements. However, any system of internal
financial control can provide only reasonable,
and not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.				
The directors have reviewed the Company’s cash
flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2012 and,
in the light of this review and the current financial
position, they are satisfied that the Company has
or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.		
The external auditors are responsible for
independently reviewing and reporting on the
Company’s annual financial statements. The annual
financial statements have been examined by the
Company’s external auditors and their report is
presented on pages 36 to 37.
The annual financial statements set out on pages
39 to 52, which have been prepared on the going
concern basis, were approved by the directors on
29 February 2012 and were signed on its behalf by:
		
				

Director
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Directors’ Report

The directors submit their report for the year ended 31 December 2011

1. Review of Activities
Main Business and Operations
There were no change in the nature of the Company’s business during the year under review. The Company continues to be the “One Voice for Tourism” in South Africa.							
The operating results and state of affairs of the Company are fully set out in the attached annual financial
statements and do not in our opinion require and further comment.

2. Going Concern							
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a
going concern. The basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in
the ordinary course of business.							

3. Post Balance Sheet Events		
The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.

4. Directors							
The directors of the Company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:		
Name								Nationality						Appointment / ** Resignation date
Bender, B
Dutch
Christie, R
South African
De Bruin, P
South African
Dungan, B						South African				
Edmond, RT - Chairman
South African
Eyre, G		 					British				
Fouche, C
South African
Kata, R
South African
Lewis, M
South African
Marobe, M
South African
Mrasi, C
South African
Pauwen, L
Belgian
Phillips, G
South African

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA

04 August 2011

04 August 2011
04 August 2011

01 March 2011
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Name								Nationality						Appointment / ** Resignation date
Potgieter, T
South African
04 August 2011
Pringle, A
South African
Ross, C
South African
Seif, J								USA				
Siddo, S
South African
04 August 2011
Tatalias, M
South African
Ungersbock, C
South African
01 March 2011
Venter, J
South African
04 August 2011
Wood, G							South African				
Zweigenthal, C
South African
04 August 2011

5. Auditors
Tenk Loubser & Associates will continue in office in accordance with the Companies Act.

6. Registered Address							
Leriba Lodge							
245 End Street
Clubview							
0157
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Figures in Rand

Notes

2011

2010

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

3

85 561

63 354

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

4
5

2 504 036
17 944 438
20 448 474
20 534 035

934 600
11 980 597
12 915 197
12 978 551

12 301 186

7 823 930

7 564 646
668 203
8 232 849
20 534 035

4 564 394
590 227
5 154 621
12 978 551

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Retained surplus
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Provisions

8
6

Total Equity and Liabilities

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Figures in Rand

Revenue
Other income
Administrative expenses
Operating suplus
Investment revenue
Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA

Notes

9
10
11
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2011

1 748 493
4 742 419
(5 120 880)
1 370 032
3 107 224
4 477 256
4 477 256

2010

2 144 962
4 892 475
(4 916 927)
2 120 510
340 301
2 460 811
2 460 811
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Retained
surplus

Figures in Rand

Balance at 01 January 2010
Changes in equity
Surplus for the year
Total changes
Balance at 01 January 2011
Changes in equity
Surplus for the year
Total changes
Balance at 31 December 2011

Total
equity

5 363 119

5 363 119

2 460 811
2 460 811
7 823 930

2 460 811
2 460 811
7 823 930

4 477 256
4 477 256
12 301 186

4 477 256
4 477 256
12 301 186

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Figures in Rand

Notes

2011

2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash (used in) generated from operations
Cash generated from operations
Interest income
Net cash from operating activities

13
11

(543 041)
3 445 333
2 902 292
3 107 224
6 009 516

1 607 070
(1 423 559)
183 511
340 301
523 812

(68 013)
(68 013)

(19 617)
70 232
50 615

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(Loans to) / proceeds from financial assets
Net cash from investing activities
Total cash movement for the year
Cash at beginning of the year
Total cash at end of the year
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5 941 503
11 980 597
17 922 100

574 427
11 406 170
11 980 597
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Accounting Policies

1. PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, and the Companies Act of South Africa. The annual financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except where otherwise indicated, and incorporate the principal policies set
out below.
These accounting policies are consistant with the previous period.

1.1		 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and
equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful
lives to their estimated residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.
Item								Average useful life
IT equipment
3 years (33%)
Office equipment
6.67 years (15%)
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted
for as a change in accounting estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the
carrying amount of another asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment
is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the
derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.							
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1.2

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank balances, receivables and
trade creditors. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy
statements associated with each item.
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are carried at anticipated realisable value. A provision is made for impairment of
trade receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year end. Bad debts are written
off during the year in which they are identified.
Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cashflow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits with banks, and investments in money market instruments.

1.3

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
Provisions are recognised when:
•

the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

•

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and

•

a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Employee entitlement to annual leave and long term service are recognised when they accrue to
employees.
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A contingent liability is:

1.4

•

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the entity: or

•

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
-

it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; or

-

the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

GRANTS
WK Kelloggs Foundation grants relating to The Black Empowerment and Transformation projects
and Department of Environmental Affairs & Tourism (DEAT) grant relating to the Tourism Services
Excellence program are included in non current liabilities as deferred and are debited to the income
statement as the qualifying expenditure is recognised immediately as an expense.

1.5

REVENUE
Membership subscription and renewals of memberships are recognised in full upon becoming a
member or renewal of membership, net of Value Added Taxes.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues.
Income from management fees is based on 5% of collections made by Tourism Marketing South
Africa and is recognised as it accrues.
Project income, consists of 4% to 15% of the project value as well as research and marketing done
by the Company for the respective projects.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2011

Figures in Rand

3.

2010

Property, plant and equipment

Office Equipment
IT Equipment
Total

Office Equipment
IT Equipment
Total

Cost /
Valuation

2011
Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
Value

264 736
183 275
448 011

(223 494)
(138 956)
(362,449)

41 242
44 319
85 561

Cost /
Valuation

2010
Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
Value

241 874
138 124
379 998

(206 534)
(110 110)
(319,997)

35 340
28 014
63 354

Reconciliation of property, plant and
equipment - 2011

Office
equipment
IT equipment

46

Opening
Balance

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

35 340
28 014
63 354

22 862
45 151
68 013

-

(16 960)
(28 846)
(45 806)

41 242
44 319
85 561
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2011

Figures in Rand
4.

2010

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
Other receivables
SARS
Less provision for impairment
Deposits
VAT
TOMSA - management fee receivable
Accrued interest
Trade payables in advance
Funds receivable - TTHC Project

904
895
1 543 395
2 600
65 676
469 112
379 438
19 816
22 199
2 504 036

788 778

(362 889)
2 600
439 094
32 357
24 859
9 801
934 600

The carrying value of trade and other receivables reflects the
approximate fair value at year end.
RECONCILIATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES OF
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Opening balance
Provision for impairment
Amounts written off as uncollectable

362 889
(362 889)
-

485 528
362 889
(485 528)
362 889

The creation and release of allowance for credit losses have been
included in operating expenses in the income statement.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair value of each class of loan mentioned above. The entity does
not hold any collateral as security.
5.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand
Bank balances

1 500
17 942 938
17 944 438

1 500
11 979 097
11 980 597

Cash and bank earns interest at floating rate based on a daily
bank deposit rate.
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2011

Figures in Rand

6.

2010

Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2011
Opening
Balance
Staff incentives
Leave pay

Additions/
(Utilised)

Total

327 828
262 399
590 227

15 320
62 656
77 976

343 148
325 055
668 203

Opening
Balance

Additions

Total

Reconciliation of provisions - 2010

Staff incentives
Leave pay

7.

377 090
253 838
630 928

(49 262)
8 561
(40 701)

327 828
262 399
590 227

Income tax
The Company applied in December 2003 to the South African
Revenue Services to obtain tax exemption status under section
10(1)(e) of the Income Tax Act. In the event of SARS not giving
exemption, an estimated liability of R 6 573 130 (including
penalties and interest) will be incurred by the Company. The
necessary journals will then need to be processed to reflect
the liability. The financial statements as current do not include
this possible liability.				

8.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Trade receivables with credit balances
Membership fees received in advance
Project Funds
Funds - TOMSA
Funds - HICA
VAT

88 517
23 682
830 153
4 624 903
1 922 259
9 801
65 331
7 564 646

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximate their
fair value.		
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2011

Figures in Rand

9.

Revenue
Membership income

10.

2010

1 748 493

2 144 962

201 484

196 659

29 447
230 931

27 372
224 031

Operating profit
Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for the
following :
Operating lease charges
Premises
• Contractual amounts
Equipment
• Contractual amounts

Profit / Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Impairments
Depreciation
Employee costs

11.

(11 243)
362 889
61 939
2 963 376
3 238 103

3 107 224

340 301

33 264

36 500

Investment revenue
Bank

12.

22 338
75 724
3 523 612
3 852 605

Auditors remuneration
Fees
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2011

Figures in Rand

13.

Cash generated from operation
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
(Profit)/Loss on sale of assets
Interest received
Movements in provisions
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

14.

2010

4 477 256

2 460 811

75 724
(22 338)
(3 107 224)
77 976

61 939
11 243
(340 301)
(40 701)

(1 599 354)
3 000 252
2 902 292

(537 892)
(1 431 588)
183 511

Related parties
RELATED PARTY BALANCES
Payable to Tourism Marketing South Africa

1 922 260

-

4 720 081

4 892 475

2011
For services as director

Emoluments
1 327 596

Total
1 327 596

2010
For services as director

Emoluments
1 227 170

Total
1 227 170

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Management fees received - Tourism Marketing South Africa
15.

Director's emoluments
EXECUTIVE
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2011

Figures in Rand

16.

2010

Risk management
LIQUIDITY RISK
The company’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available
to cover future commitments.  The company manages liquidity
risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit
facilities.		
		
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised
borrowing facilities are monitored.		
		
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised
borrowing facilities are monitored.

At 31 December 2011
Trade and other payables
At 31 December 2010
Trade and other payables

Less than 1
year
7 564 646

Between 1
and 2 years
-

Between 2
and 5 years
-

Over 5 years

Less than 1
year
4 564 393

Between 1
and 2 years
-

Between 2
and 5 years
-

Over 5 years

-

-

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk consists mainly of other debtors and cash and cash
equivalents. The company only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any
one counter-party.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as
follows:
2011
Financial instrument
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables

17 944 438
2 533 954

2010
11 980 597
934 600

INTEREST RATE RISK
The company exposes itself to interest rate risk by investing in
major banks.
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Detailed Income Statement
Figures in Rand

Notes

REVENUE
Membership income
Gross profit
OTHER INCOME
Interest received - bank and other investments
Management fees: Tourism Marketing South Africa
Profit on fixed assets
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Auditor's remuneration
Bad debts written off
Bank charges
Computer expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Data storage
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Employee costs
Insurance
Lease rentals on operating lease
Legal expense
Loss on fixed assets
Marketing
Meetings: Board & AGM
Membership Fees
Office expenses
Fines and penalties
Provision for bad debts
Courier & Postage
PR & Communications
Repairs and maintenance
Stationery
Stategic projects
Telephone and fax
Travel - local
Travel - overseas

2011

2010

1 748 493
1 748 493

2 144 962
2 144 962

11

3 107 224
4 720 081
22 338
7 849 643

340 301
4 892 475
5 232 776

12

(33 264)
(7 576)
(92 522)
(99 926)
(2 038)
(75 724)
(3 523 612)
(19 664)
(230 931)
(17 000)
(219 171)
(77 062)
(50 000)
(4 257)
(1 215)
(190 130)
(3 947)
(10 164)
(48 644)
(81 862)
(101 502)
(230 669)
(5 120 880)

(36 500)
(124 186)
(6 475)
(105 171)
(79 454)
(2 560)
(61 939)
(3 046 039)
(21 644)
(224 031)
(17 770)
(11 243)
(249 777)
(69 959)
(3 848)
(367 554)
122 636
(931)
(216 462)
(8 260)
(13 608)
(26 457)
(101 152)
(65 104)
(179 439)
(4 916 927)

4 477 256
4 477 256

2 460 811
2 460 811

Operating profit
Surplus for the year

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is
unaudited.
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TBCSA Members 2011

Crown member

Small Business

First National Bank

AA Travel Guides
Accommodation Direct
Akani Hospitality
ProServ South Africa
Fair Trade in Tourism South Africa (FTTSA)
Pam Golding Hospitality
Grant Thornton Strategic Solutions
Johannesburg Tourism Company
Leriba Hotel & Spa
Siyabona Africa
Stormsriver Adventures
Kuname River Lodge
Klippe River Country Lodge

Business Members
Large Business
Airports Company of South Africa
Avis Southern Africa
Budget Rent-a-car
City Lodge Group
Legacy Hotels & Resorts
Protea Hotels
South African Airways
Southern Sun Hotels, Inns & Resorts
Sun International
Tourvest
Expedia
Imperial Holdings

Medium-Large Business

Supportive Member
Industrial Development Corporation (IDC)

Association Members
Large Associations

African Sun
Europcar
Peermont-Global Resorts
SA National Parks
CATHSSETA
Thebe Tourism

Association of South African Travel Agents (ASATA)
Federated Hospitality Association of Southern Africa (FEDHASA)
Southern African Tourism Services Association (SATSA)
Southern African Association for the Conference Industry (SAACI)
Airline Association of Southern Africa (AASA)

Medium Business

Medium Association

Hilton International
Hyatt Regency Johannesburg
South African Express Airways
Thompsons Africa
Three Cities Hospitality

South African Vehicle Rental and Leasing Association (SAVRALA)

Small Associations
Southern African Bus Operators’ Association (SABOA)
South African Youth Travel Confederation (SAYTC)
Afrikaanse Handels Instituut (AHI)
National Accommodation of South Africa (NAA-SA)
Vocation Ownership of Southern Africa (VOASA)
Restaurant Association of South Africa (RASA)
Medical Tourism Association of South Africa (MTASA)
National Off Road Working Group (NOW)
South African Leisure Tourism and Hospitality Association (SALTHA)
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TOMSA
Tourism Marketing South Africa (TOMSA) is a voluntary levy collection system set
up in 1998, by the travel and tourism private sector, to raise additional funds for the
promotion of destination South Africa.
As the appointed marketing agency for the destination, South African Tourism makes
use of these funds to profile the country, as the preferred tourist destination locally
and internationally.

The concept of a tourism levy is not unique to South
Africa, however what makes TOMSA special is that
it is based on voluntary contributions from tourism
businesses that recognise the value of working as a
collective to promote our destination.

How does business benefit from
supporting TOMSA
Mutually beneficial relationship
TOMSA facilitates a mutually beneficial relationship
between business operating in the travel and
tourism industry and SA Tourism.
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For business, it is important that its views, handson knowledge and insights are taken into account
when embarking on marketing campaigns to
promote the destination. In turn, tourism operators
also acknowledge that implementing marketing
campaigns of this nature can be a costly affair;
hence the industry’s commitment to raise funds in
support of South African Tourism’s marketing efforts.
Essentially, TOMSA is about developing a joint
approach between business and government and
the wider public to promote destination South
Africa, for the overall benefit of the industry.
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Growth in numbers

The relationship with South African Tourism is
regulated through two key mechanisms.

Since its inception in 1998, TOMSA has grown from
collecting R9.9 million in 1999 with less than 50
collectors, to collecting in excess of R90 million in
2011. The marketing of destination South Africa has
increased dramatically over the same period, where
South Africa is now actively promoted in twelve core
markets around the world, namely – the USA, UK,
Germany, France, Italy, Netherlands, Kenya, Nigeria,
China, Japan, India and Australia.
South African Tourism has also recognised the
value that can be found in the African markets and
is increasingly expanding its promotional activities
to reach new audiences within the Continent. With
additional funding from TOMSA, the marketing
agency’s reach is expanding, thus opening doors
to new markets and new business opportunities for
industry.

How much is the levy?

•

Firstly, through a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) between the TBCSA
and SA Tourism. The MOU includes amongst
others, the responsibilities of both parties and
the benefits to accrue to levy collectors; and
the schedule to allow private sector inputs
into South African Tourism’s annual business
plans.

•

Secondly, through quarterly bilateral
meetings held between the two organisations
to discuss the challenges and opportunities
in the sector and discussing South African
Tourism’s marketing and promotional
activities.

Currently, levy collection is largely concentrated at
the Car Rental, Tour Operator and Accommodation
sectors, however, the future plans to expand this
initiative to other sectors.

TOMSA levy collection constitutes paying over 1% of
each confirmed booking towards the TOMSA fund.
The levies are paid by the tourist and the business
merely acts as a collector of the levies to be paid
over to Tourism Marketing South Africa (TOMSA).  
TBCSA, as the managing agent for TOMSA ensures
that levies collected are transferred to South African
Tourism.
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“Already in 2010 certain signs could be
seen of an economic slowdown. Such
a slowdown coupled with additional
cut backs in corporate travel and an
apparent oversupply in capacity did not
spell growth for our very fickle industry.
All of the above caused 2011, which a
couple of years ago was expected to be a
great year, to be the worst year in recent
history for many of us...”
Nils Heckscher

Sitting in January of 2012 and looking back on
2011 is like being dry after a long and hard rain. My
goodness, what a year it was.
Already in 2010 certain signs could be seen of an
economic slowdown. Such a slowdown coupled
with additional cut backs in corporate travel and an
apparent oversupply in capacity did not spell growth
for our very fickle industry. All of the above caused
2011, which a couple of years ago was expected to
be a great year, to be the worst year in recent history
for many of us.
When trying to identify where we went wrong one
realises that we could not have seen the signs.
Maybe logic and level headedness could have told
us that the kind of growth experienced in the capital
markets, over the last years, was impossible to have
been real and in any way sustainable. But that the
world economy would take such a knock was not
possible to be forecasted. The additional capacity
that was built due to the 2010 soccer world cup
was seen by many as exaggerated, others would
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call it visionary. The fact is many of those additional
rooms remained empty in 2011. I recently heard
someone say that we do not have too many rooms;
we just have too few guests. Like everything in life, it
depends on the angle you view things from!
What did a bad year, such as the one we reflect
on, mean to us at TOMSA? Assuming that, if the
industry is down, the collection of levies would
also be reduced. Amazingly this did actually not
materialise, which initially had us puzzled. So, having
used the levy collections as an industry barometer
in the past, we sat down to interrogate the figures.
We tried to find the reasons why the movement of
levies collected versus industry feedback about the
reduction in business levels were not in line. What
we found was very encouraging for the team.
The way we were collecting before, left us room
for improvement. The way we stayed in touch with
our collectors and the level of interaction with
senior management in these companies also was
scrutinized. This resulted in changes that showed
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almost instant results. It became clear that these
changes were long overdue by based on the way
they were received. The new way sufficiently
inspired the team to approach new collectors and
in a time where one would have thought recruiting
new collectors would be difficult, TOMSA managed
to increase its collector base.
As we face another year of uncertainty we need
to go back to basics and make sure we have our
priorities right. Domestic and regional tourism will
receive more attention from many sectors of the
business and so will the entire aspect of value for
money. Our alliances need to be strengthened;
we continue to work with our sole beneficiary, SA
Tourism, to ensure that our collector base continues
to grow.
These efforts essentially mean constant reevaluation so that we deliver relevant and up to
date benefits to our collectors. It has to be a natural
choice for tourism products to support TOMSA,
but it also needs to be an informed choice. This
information and the input needed by industry has
to be channelled through TOMSA. The various
campaigns spearheaded by SA Tourism need to be
seen, understood and supported by industry - this
is where TOMSA and the TBCSA get to work. But
this is also where we need the involvement from
industry players. We cannot afford as an industry
to appear fragmented and disorganised, we need
to rally behind the structures that we have created
and support these, not without question but with
purpose.

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA

I would like to thank Mmatšatši and her team, many
of whom joined her only this year, for the hard work,
which delivered great results. The dedication and
relentless efforts this team makes, allows us to shine
as an industry, they are on many platforms our face,
our voice!
I view the coming year as one that will be somewhat
like a rollercoaster - the first couple of months seem
to be good for many. But as a large number of
our centres are still rather seasonal we need to get
ourselves ready for the coming low season. So, let
us prepare ourselves, and one way to do so, in my
book, is to continue on the path of cooperation,
sharing experiences and to learn that standing
together does work in uncertain times.
May 2012 be overall a better year for you and your
business! Thank you for your contribution to TOMSA.
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“Considering the scale of natural disasters
in Japan and New Zealand and the ongoing
economic uncertainties that seem to have
become omnipresent, 2011 will be remembered
as a year that most would rather forget.
Against this backdrop the value of the TOMSA
levy could not have been illustrated...”

Francois Gerber

An Overview
Post 1994 and pre 2010, South Africa experienced
an unprecedented tourism boom. For more than a
decade we were one of the “bucket list” destinations
and marketing a destination in a high-demand
environment was easy.  However, the unfolding
effects of the global economic recession forced
most organisations and travellers to reconsider
their travel plans and needs.  For travel and tourism
operators this resulted in a hasty return back to
the drawing board soon after the high of the 2010
Soccer World Cup.
The one common denominator among all the
contingency plans and SWOT analyses was that
marketing destination South Africa as a collective is
vital for the survival of individual entities within the
industry - and that is where TOMSA plays a vital role.
From humble beginnings of collecting less than R10
million in 1999, TOMSA levy collections have grown
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to close to R100 million in 2011.   This substantial
contribution from the private sector has allowed SA
Tourism to embark on major marketing campaigns
and efforts that would not have been possible the
industry’s support.

Levy Collector Feedback Sessions:
The annual TOMSA road shows are an important
platform for us to engage with our valued levy
collectors, providing feedback on the performance
of the initiative, sharing information about upcoming
marketing campaigns and to receive general
feedback from the industry.
In 2011, the road shows were held in the month of
August in Cape Town, Durban and Johannesburg.
One of the highlights of the shows was the unveiling
of SA Tourism’s latest international marketing
campaign called “leave ordinary behind”. SA
Tourism also used the road show platform to
present the 2012/13 business plan.  Levy collectors
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were afforded the opportunity to share their views
on the campaign and to provide input into the
business plan.  TBCSA Crown Member, FNB, was
also provided the opportunity to present financial
tourism products on offer.

Collaboration with SA Tourism
Over the past few years we endeavoured to
strengthen our relationship with SA Tourism, which
can now more aptly be described as a partnership.
While SA Tourism work under tremendous pressure
to deliver a wide range of objectives and mandates
set by Government, they have welcomed the private
sector’s will to get involved to such an extent that
TOMSA had the opportunity to be part of their
annual Board Lekgotla and contribute to the 2012/13
business plan.
Furthermore, the management showed their support
to TOMSA, attending all sessions of the annual
TOMSA road shows, hear the views of business
and interact directly with levy collectors. This
partnership can only be sustained if we continue
to be constructive in our criticism but also take our
responsibility of collecting and paying over levies
seriously. It is in the interest of all of us to ensure
that we work as a collective.

these is a project on how we can create more value
for those businesses that are currently collecting the
levy by developing more tangible benefits for them.
Consolidating and growing the levy collector base is
another top priority. We look forward to increasing
our visibility and working closely with local tourism
associations and other relevant industry bodies to
forge mutually beneficial partnerships which will
extend the reach of TOMSA to all tourism operators
in the country.
The key to the success of the TOMSA levy is for all
business to take ownership of this great initiative. It
should never be seen to be an administrative burden,
but rather a responsibility for all tourism operators.
After all, the benefits accrue to the industry as a
whole.
Lastly, we thank all our levy collectors who continue
to support us and have done so for many years.
Without your support TOMSA would not have been
able to make an immeasurable contribution to the
growth and development of the entire Travel and
Tourism Industry of South Africa.

Conclusion
Looking ahead to 2012 everybody seems to be
cautiously optimistic and is looking forward to a year
where some degree of stability and calm will return.
As far as TOMSA is concerned, more work lies
ahead and we see 2012 as the year where we start
to implement some of our projects and plans which
have been in the pipeline for some time. Amongst
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TOMSA Monthly Collections 2010 vs 2011

TOMSA Monthly Collections 2011

TOMSA Monthly Collections 2004 to 2011
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Report of the Independent Auditors

To the members of TOURISM
MARKETING SOUTH AFRICA
(ASS. INCORPORATED UNDER
SEC 21)
We have audited the financial statements of
TOURISM MARKETING SOUTH AFRICA (ASS.
INCORPORATED UNDER SEC 21), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2011, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, as set out on pages 68 to 74.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with South African
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and in the manner required by the
Companies Act of South Africa. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatements.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of TOURISM MARKETING SOUTH AFRICA (ASS.
INCORPORATED UNDER SEC 21) as at 31 December
2011, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with
South African Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and in the manner required by
the Companies Act of South Africa.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention
the fact that the company applied in December
2003 to the South African Revenue Services to
obtain tax exemption status under section 10(1)(e)
of the Income Tax Act. In the event of the South
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African Revenue Services not giving exemption,
and estimated liability of R65 634 902 (including
penalties and interest) will be incurred by the
company. The financial statements at the moment
do not include the recognition of the South African
Revenue Services liability (refer to note 10).
We would also like to draw attention to the fact that,
due to the payments received being voluntary, it is
not feasible for the entity to implement accounting
controls over all collections prior to the initial
entry of the collections in the accounting records.
Accordingly, it was impractical for us to extend our
examination beyond the receipts actually recorded
and can therefore only express an opinion on the
completeness of the revenue actually recorded.

Supplementary information
We draw your attention to the fact that the
supplementary information set out in Annexure 1
does not form part of the financial statements and
is presented as additional information. We have
not audited this information and accordingly do not
express an opinion thereon.

TENK LOUBSER & ASSOCIATES
Registered Auditors
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)
Per:  M.A. Oberholzer
Director
Johannesburg
02 February 2012
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Directors’ Responsibilities and Approval

The directors are required to maintain adequate
accounting records and are responsible for the
content and integrity of the annual financial
statements and related financial information
included in this report. It is their responsibility to
ensure that the annual financial statements fairly
present the state of affairs of the Company as
at the end of the financial year and the results
of its operations and cash flows for the period
then ended, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by
the International Accounting Board. The external
auditors are engaged to express an independent
opinion on the annual financial statements.				
		
The annual financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and are based upon appropriate
accounting policies consistently applied and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates.				
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately
responsible for the system of internal financial
control established by the Company and place
considerable importance on maintaining a strong
control environment. To enable the directors to
meet these responsibilities, the Board of Directors
sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing
the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner.
The standards include the proper delegation of
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level
of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the
company and all employees are required to maintain
the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
Company’s business is conducted in a manner that

in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.
The focus of risk management in the Company is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring
all known forms of risk across the Company. While
operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the
Company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring
that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems
and ethical behaviour are applied and managed
within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on
the information and explanations given by
management, that the system of internal control
provides reasonable assurance that the financial
records may be relied on for the preparation of
the annual financial statements. However, any
system of internal financial control can provide only
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.				
The directors have reviewed the Company’s cash
flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2012 and,
in the light of this review and the current financial
position, they are satisfied that the Company has
or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.		
The external auditors are responsible for
independently reviewing and reporting on the
Company’s annual financial statements. The annual
financial statements have been examined by the
Company’s external auditors and their report is
presented on pages 62 to 63.
The annual financial statements set out on pages
65 to 75, which have been prepared on the going
concern basis, were approved by the directors on
29 February 2012 and were signed on its behalf by:
		
				

Director
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Directors’ Report

The directors submit their report for the year ended
31 December 2011

4. Directors
The directors of the Company during the year
and to the date of this report are as follows:		

1. Review of Activities
Main Business and Operations
The company is engaged in services and
operates principally in South Africa.		
		
The operating results and state of affairs of the
company are fully set out in the attached annual
financial statements and do not in our opinion
require any further comment.
		
Net (deficit) / surplus of the company was
R (1 474 293.92) (2010: R (9 833 475)).

Name								Nationality				
			
P Brearley
British
A Dooley							South African
W Duvenage					South African
N Griffin							British
N Heckscher (Chairman)
German
F Jordaan
South African
M Marobe
South African
D Pretorius
South African
J Tait 								South African
RJ Williams
South African

5. Auditors

2. Going Concern

Tenk Loubser & Associates will continue in office
in accordance with the Companies Act.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. The basis presumes that
funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of
business.							

6. Registered Address						
245 End Street
Clubview							
0157

3. Events after the reporting
period
The directors are not aware of any matter
or circumstance arising since the end of the
financial year.
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Annual Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Figures in Rand

Notes

2011

2010

ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

2

1 811

12 671

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

3
4

1 686 193
56 212 629
57 898 822
57 900 633

61 385 072
61 385 072
61 397 743

35 183 305

36 657 599

22 717 327
22 717 327
57 900 633

24 740 144
24 740 144
61 397 743

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Retained surplus
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

5

Total Equity and Liabilities

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Figures in Rand

Total levies collected
Contribution to South African Tourism
Gross (deficit) / surplus
Administrative expenses
Operating (deficit) / surplus
Investment revenue
(Deficit) / surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive (deficit) / surplus
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2011

96 183 488
(91 618 816)
4 564 672
(6 038 966)
(1 474 294)
(1 474 294)
(1 474 294)

2010

97 829 460
(105 979 615)
(8 150 155)
(5 047 216)
(13 197 372)
3 363 897
(9 833 475)
(9 833 475)
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Annual Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Retained
surplus

Figures in Rand

Balance at 01 January 2010
Changes in equity
Total comprehensive income for the year
Total changes
Balance at 01 January 2011
Changes in equity
Total comprehensive deficit for the year
Total changes
Balance at 31 December 2011

Total
equity

46 491 074

46 491 074

(9 833 475)
(9 833 475)
36 657 599

(9 833 475)
(9 833 475)
36 657 599

(1 474 294)
(1 474 294)
35 183 305

(1 474 294)
(1 474 294)
35 183 305

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Figures in Rand

Notes

2011

2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash (used in) generated from operations
Cash used in operations
Interest income
Net cash from operating activities

12

96 183 488
(91 618 816)
(5 172 443)
(5 172 443)

97 829 460
(87 181 342)
10 648 118
3 363 897
14 012 015

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net cash from investing activities

2

-

(21 721)
(21 721)

-

(70 232)
(70 232)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of other financial liabilities
Net cash from financing activities
Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year
Total cash at end of the year
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(5 172 443)
61 385 072
56 212 629

13 920 062
47 465 010
61 385 072
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Accounting Policies

1. PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and the Companies Act of
South Africa. The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except
where otherwise indicated, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are
presented in South African Rands.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1		 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
•
•

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company;
and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and
equipment and cost incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful
lives to their estimated residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.
Item							Average useful life
Computer software
2 years
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted
for as a change in accounting estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to
the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
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The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the
carrying amount of another asset.

1.2

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Initial recognition and measurement
The company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a
financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which
a fair value is not determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available for sale
financial assets.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the company’s balance sheet when the
company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial
asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the company establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific
inputs.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days
overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
The company assesses its trade receivables for impairment at each balance sheet date. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the
company makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
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Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.

1.3

TURNOVER
Turnover comprises of levies collected on behalf of South African Tourism.
Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents
the amounts receivable for all the levies collected on behalf of South African Tourism, deducting
the value added tax amount.

1.4

REVENUE
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably,
revenue associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated
reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied :
•
•
•
•

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
company;
the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured
reliably; and
the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue shall be recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are
recoverable.
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade
discounts and volume rebates, and value added tax.
Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during
which the service is performed.
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2011

Figures in Rand

2.

Property, plant and equipment

Computer software
Total

Computer software
Total

Cost /
Valuation

2011
Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
Value

21 721
21 721

(19 910)
(19 910)

1 811
1 811

Cost /
Valuation

2010
Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
Value

21 721
21 721

(9 050)
(9 050)

12 671
12 671

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2011
Opening
Balance
Additions
Disposals
Computer
software

Depreciation

Total

12 671

-

-

(10 860)

1 811

12 671

-

-

(10 860)

1 811

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2010
Opening
Balance
Additions
Disposals

Depreciation

Total

Computer
software

3.

2010

-

21 721

-

(9 050)

12 671

-

21 721

-

(9 050)

12 671

Trade and other receivables
Levies

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA
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2011

Figures in Rand
4.

2010

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances

56 212 629

61 385 072

782 472
1 311 646
20 623 209
22 717 327

437 100
1 222 160
8 339
23 057 115
15 430
24 740 144

96 183 488

97 829 460

91 618 816

105 979 615

-

3 363 897

Cash and bank earns interest at floating rate
based on a daily bank deposit rate.
5.

Trade and other payables
TBCSA Management fee payable
VAT
Levies ex Nedbank
South African Tourism
Legal fees

6.

Revenue
Rendering of services

7.

Direct cost
Cost of services rendered

8.

Investment revenue
INTEREST REVENUE
Bank

9.

Taxation
No taxation has been provided, since the company is in the
process of applying for tax exemption under section 10(1)(e) of
the Income Tax Act. In the event of SARS not giving exemption,
an estimated liability of R65 634 902 (including penalties and
interest) will be incurred by the company. This liability has not
been recorded in the accounting records and are classified as a
contingent liability.			
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2011

Figures in Rand
10.

Auditors' remuneration
Fees

11.

2010

33 264

36 500

10 860

9 050

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses for the period is stated after accounting
for the following:
Depreciation

12.

Cash used in operations
Deficit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Interest received
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

13.

(1 474 294)
10 860
(1 686 193)
(2 022 817)
(5 172 443)

(9 833 474)
9 050
(3 363 897)
25 970
23 810 469
10 648 118

Related parties
Relationships
Tourism Business Council of South Africa

Under similar management
control

South African Tourism
Related party balances
Tourism Business Council of South Africa
Levies payable by TBCSA
Fees payable to TBCSA

TOURISM BUSINESS COUNCIL OF SOUTH AFRICA
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2011

Figures in Rand

2010

Related party transactions

14.

Tourism Business Council of South Africa
Management fees paid

4 720 081

4 892 475

South African Tourism
Levies paid

91 618 816

105 979 615

Risk Management
LIQUIDITY RISK
The company’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available
to cover future commitments.  The company manages liquidity
risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit
facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised
borrowing facilities are monitored.

At 31 December 2011
Trade and other payables
At 31 December 2010
Trade and other payables

Less than 1
year
22 717 327

Between 1
and 2 years
-

Between 2
and 5 years
-

Over 5 years

Less than 1
year
24 740 144

Between 1
and 2 years
-

Between 2
and 5 years
-

Over 5 years

-

-

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk consists mainly of other debtors and cash and cash
equivalents. The company only deposits cash with major
bank with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any
one counter-party.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as
follows:
2011
Financial instrument
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
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Detailed Income Statement
Figures in Rand

Notes

2011

REVENUE
Levies collected

96 183 488

DIRECT COST
Contribution to South African Tourism
Gross surplus (deficit)

(91 618 816)
4 564 672

OTHER INCOME
Interest received
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Auditors remuneration
Bank charges
Computer support expenses
Depreciation
Legal fees
Project expenses
Management services

9

11

(Deficit) surplus for the year

-

2010

97 829 460

(105 979 615)
(8 150 155)

3 363 897

(33 264)
(8 380)
(10 860)
(266 381)
(1 000 000)
(4 720 081)
(6 038 966)

(36 500)
(9 800)
(75 149)
(9 050)
(24 242)
(4 892 475)
(5 047 216)

(1 474 294)

(9 833 474)

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is
unaudited.
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Nils Heckscher
Board Chairman TOMSA & MD
Winchester Mansions

Franco Jordaan
Deputy Board Chairman and
MD Court Classique Hotels

Mmatšatši Marobe
CEO-TBCSA

Wayne Duvenage
CEO AVIS

Kobus Tait
MD, Forever Resorts

Nic Griffin
CEO, The Thornybush Collection

Dale Pretorius
Marketing Manager, Value
South Africa

Paddy Brealey
CEO, Legacy Hotels

Robert Williams
CEO, Savoy Hotels

Alistair Dooley
Divisional Director Financials,
City Lodge Hotels
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Levy Collectors in Good Standing

Levy Collectors in Good Standing

15 ON ORANGE HOTEL

ESSENWOOD HOUSE

LAGOON BEACH HOTEL

ABERCROMBIE & KENT SOUTHERN AFRICA

EUROPCAR SOUTH AFRICA

LERIBA HOTEL AND SPA

ACORN HOUSE  B&B

FAIRCITY QUARTERMAIN HOTEL

LESEDI CULTURAL VILLAGE

AFRICAN CONFERENCES AND INCENTIVES

FAIRFIELD TOURS

LIFE HOTEL AIRPORT JOHANNESBURG

AFRO GOLF

FERROLAND GRONDTRUST

LUXURY CAR

ALPINE HEATH RESORT & CONF. VILLAGE

FERRYMAN’S HOTEL

LYTHWOOD LODGE

ALTES LANDHAUS LODGE

FISH RIVER SUN & COUNTRY CLUB RESORT

MAIDENHEAD COUNTRY LODGE

ASCOT BOUTIQUE HOTEL

FOREVER RESORTS - BADPLAAS

MAKALALI PRIVATE GAME RESERVE

ASHANTI LODGE

FOREVER RESORTS - BLYDE CANYON

MAKARANGA GARDEN LODGE

ATLANTIC BEACH HOTEL                   

FOREVER RESORTS - CENTURION HOTEL

MAGALIES PARK COUNTRY CLUB

AVALON SPRINGS HOTEL

FOREVER RESORTS - GARIEP

MALA MALA RANCH

AVIS RENT A CAR

FOREVER RESORTS - LOSKOPDAM

MANDELA RHODES PLACE

BAYSHORE INN

FOREVER RESORTS - MOUNT SHEBA COUNTRY LODGE

MAROPENG A’ AFRIKA LEISURE

BEACH HOTEL - PORT ELIZABETH

FOREVER RESORTS - PLETTENBERG BAY

MASIBAMBANE GUEST HOUSE

BUCKLANDS PRIVATE GAME RESERVE

FOREVER RESORTS - SWADINI

MASONIC HOTEL SPRINGBOK

BOSCHDAL GUESTHOUSE

FOREVER RESORTS - TSHIPISE

MATOPPO INN

BREAKWATER LODGE

FOREVER RESORTS - WARMBATHS

MERCURE  PREMIER LODGE BEDFORDVIEW

BREEDE RIVER RESORT AND FISHING LODGE

FYNBOS RIDGE COTTAGES

MERCURE  PREMIER LODGE NELSPRUIT

BUDGET RENT A CAR

GALLO MANOR COUNTRY LODGE

MERCURE INN MIDRAND

BUHALA COUNTRY LODGE

GATEWAY HOTEL

MERCURE INN RANBURG WATERFRONT

CABANA BEACH HOTEL

GOLDEN HORSE CASINO HOTEL

MKUZE FALLS GAME RESERVE

CALEDON CASINO

GOOD HOPE PALACE HOTELS             

MONDAZUR RESORT ESTATE HOTEL

CAPE GRACE HOTEL

GOODERSON LEISURE CORPORATION

MONGENA GAME LODGE

CARNIVAL CITY

GRACIE’S PLACE

MORULA SUN

CATHBERT COUNTRY INN

GRANDE ROCHE HOTEL

MOUNT GRACE COUNTRY HOUSE HOTEL

CENTURION LAKE PROPERTY

GRANDWEST CASINO & ENTERTAINMENT WORLD

MOUNT NELSON HOTEL

CITY LODGE - BLOEMFONTEIN

GREENWAY WOODS

NALEDI SUN

CITY LODGE - BRYANSTON

HACKLEWOOD HILL COUNTRY HOUSE

NH THE LORD CHARLES

CITY LODGE - DURBAN

HARBOUR BRIDGE HOTEL & SUITES

OAKLANDS COUNTRY MANOR

CITY LODGE - FOURWAYS

HERTZ  RENT A CAR

OCEAN VIEW HOUSE

CITY LODGE - GRAND WEST

HILTON HOTEL - DURBAN

ONE AND ONLY CAPE TOWN                 

CITY LODGE - HATFIELD

HILTON HOTEL - SANDTON

OYSTER BOX HOTEL

CITY LODGE - JHB INT AIRPORT BARBARA ROAD

HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS - CAPE TOWN

PARJER TOURS

CITY LODGE - KATHERINE STREET

HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS - DURBAN

PEERMONT GLOBAL - D’OREAL GRANDE

CITY LODGE - LYNWOOD

HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS - SUNNYPARK

PEERMONT GLOBAL - FRONTIER HOTEL

CITY LODGE - MORNINGSIDE

HOLIDAY INN SANDTON

PEERMONT GLOBAL - GRACELAND HOTEL

CITY LODGE - O.R. TAMBO AIRPORT   

HOTEL 224

PEERMONT GLOBAL - KHORONI HOTEL

CITY LODGE - PINELANDS

HOTEL KOPANONG

PEERMONT GLOBAL - METCOURT LAUREL

CITY LODGE - PORT ELIZABETH

HOTEL TZANEEN

PEERMONT GLOBAL - MONDIOR

CITY LODGE - SANDTON

HOUSE OF PHARAOHS

PEERMONT GLOBAL - RIO HOTEL

CITY LODGE - UMHLANGA RIDGE

HOTEL STILWATER

PEERMONT GLOBAL - TUSK TAUNG HOTEL

CITY LODGE - V & A WATERFRONT

HOUT BAY MANOR

PESTANA KRUGER LODGE

COFFEE SHACK BACK PACKERS LODGE      

HOUW HOEK INN

PEZULA RESORT HOTEL

COMMODORE HOTEL

HUMEWOOD HOTEL

PINE LAKE SHAREBLOCK

CORAL INTERNATIONAL CAPE TOWN

HYATT REGENCY OUBAAI

PLATTNER GOLF

COURT CLASSIQUE SUITE HOTEL

HYATT REGENCY JOHANNESBURG

PORTSWOOD HOTEL

COURTYARD - ARCADIA

IKAPA TOURS & TRAVEL

PAFURI CAMP

COURTYARD - AT SANDTON

ILANGA TRAVEL

PRESIDENT HOTEL CAPE TOWN

COURTYARD - BRUMA LAKE

INTERNATIONAL HOUSE CAPE TOWN           

PROTEA HOTEL - BALALAIKA  AND CROWN COURT

COURTYARD - CAPE TOWN

ISO LEISURE WOODMEAD

PROTEA HOTEL - BLACK MOUNTAIN

COURTYARD - ROSEBANK

KAGGA KAMMA                                                                   

PROTEA HOTEL - BLOEMFONTEIN

COURTYARD - SUITE HOTEL PORT ELIZABETH

KAMIESKROON HOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - BLOEMFONTEIN CENTRAL

CRITCHLEY HACKLE LODGE

KARRIDENE TIMESHARE

PROTEA HOTEL - CAPE CASTLE

CRYSTAL TOWERS HOTEL

KINGFISHER LODGE

PROTEA HOTEL - CAPITAL

CYBELE FOREST LODGE

KOKERBOOM MOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - CLARENS

DA VINCI HOTEL & SUITES                       

KWA MARITANE GAME LODGE

PROTEA HOTEL - COLOSSEUM

DURBAN SPA BODY CORPORATE

LA MAISON - HATFIELD

PROTEA HOTEL - CUMBERLAND WORCESTER
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PROTEA HOTEL - DIAMOND LODGE

RADISSON BLU HOTEL SANDTON

THE BLUE TRAIN

PROTEA HOTEL - EDWARD

RADISSON HOTEL PORT ELIZABETH

THE CAROUSEL

PROTEA HOTEL - EMPANGENI

RELAIS - THE ADDERLEY HOTEL

THE CROWNE PLAZA ROSEBANK HOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - FIRE AND ICE CAPE TOWN

RELAIS - THE BANTRY BAY LUXURY SUITES

THE HPC

PROTEA HOTEL - FRANSCHHOEK

ROAD LODGE - BLOEMFONTEIN AIRPORT  

THE MICHELANGELO

PROTEA HOTEL - HAZYVIEW

ROAD LODGE - CAPE TOWN INT AIRPORT

THE PEECH HOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - HATFIELD HOTEL

ROAD LODGE - CARNIVAL CITY

THE PENINSULA

PROTEA HOTEL - HATFIELD LODGE

ROAD LODGE - CENTURION

THE RICHARDS HOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - HIGHVELD

ROAD LODGE - DURBAN

THE RIDGE - JACK’S CORNER

PROTEA HOTEL - HILTON

ROAD LODGE - EAST LONDON

THE THORNYBUSH COLLECTION

PROTEA HOTEL - HLUHLUWE & SAFARIS

ROAD LODGE - GERMISTON

THE TURBINE HOTEL AND SPA            

PROTEA HOTEL - IMPERIAL P/MARITZBURG

ROAD LODGE - ISANDO

THE LAST WORD CONSTANTIA

PROTEA HOTEL - ISLAND CLUB

ROAD LODGE - JHB INT AIRPORT

THE LAST WORD BISHOPSCOURT

PROTEA HOTEL - KARRIDENE

ROAD LODGE - KIMBERLEY

THE LAST WORD FRANSCHOEK

PROTEA HOTEL - KIMBERLEY

ROAD LODGE - NELSPRUIT

THE LAST WORD LONG BEACH

PROTEA HOTEL - KIING GEORGE

ROAD LODGE - N1 CITY

THE TWELVE APOSTLES HOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - KLERKSDORP

ROAD LODGE - PORT ELIZABETH

THE VACATION CLUB

PROTEA HOTEL - KNYSNA QUAYS

ROAD LODGE - PORT ELIZABETH AIRPORT

THE SAXON HOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - KRUGER GATE

ROAD LODGE - POTCHEFSTROOM

THE VILLAGE AT SPIER

PROTEA HOTEL - LANDMARK MIDRAND

ROAD LODGE - RANDBURG

THE WESTCLIFF HOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - LANDMARK POLOKWANE

ROAD LODGE - RICHARDS BAY

THOMPSON SOUTH AFRICA

PROTEA HOTEL - MAFIKENG

ROAD LODGE - RIVONIA

TOURVEST INBOUND OPERATIONS

PROTEA HOTEL - MARINE PORT ELIZABETH

ROAD LODGE - RUSTENBURG

TOWN LODGE - BELLVILLE

PROTEA HOTEL - MELROSE ARCH

ROAD LODGE - SOUTHGATE                  

TOWN LODGE - GEORGE

PROTEA HOTEL - MIDRAND

ROAD LODGE - UMHLANGA RIDGE

TOWN LODGE - JHB INT AIRPORT

PROTEA HOTEL - NELSPRUIT

ROCKWELL ALL SUITE HOTEL

TOWN LODGE - MENLOPARK

PROTEA HOTEL - NORTH WHARF

ROMNEY PARK LUXURY SUITES

TOWN LODGE - MIDRAND

PROTEA HOTEL - OASIS LODGE UPINGTON

ROSENHOF COUNTRY HOUSE

TOWN LODGE - NELSPRUIT

PROTEA HOTEL - O.R TAMBO                

ROSETTA HOUSE

TOWN LODGE - POLOKWANE

PROTEA HOTEL - THE PARK

ROVOS RAIL

TOWN LODGE - PORT ELIZABETH          

PROTEA HOTEL - PARKTONIAN ALL SUITE

ROYAL AFRICAN DISCOVERIES

TOWN LODGE - ROODEPOORT

PROTEA HOTEL - RICHARDS BAY

SANBONA WILDLIFE RESERVE

TOWN LODGE - SANDTON

PROTEA HOTEL - RIEMPIE ESTATE

SHERATON PRETORIA HOTEL AND TOWERS

TSOGO SUN NEWCASTLE

PROTEA HOTEL - RIVIERA

SIBAYA CASINO & ENTERTAINMENT KINGDOM

TZANEEN COUNTRY LODGE & SPA

PROTEA HOTEL - SEA POINT

SILVERSTAR CASINO

ULUSABA ROCKLODGE

PROTEA HOTEL - SHAKALAND

SIMON’S TOWN QUAYSIDE HOTEL

UMHLANGA SANDS

PROTEA HOTEL - STELLENBOSCH

SHAMWARI GAME RESERVE

VALUE SOUTH AFRICA

PROTEA HOTEL - THE RANCH

SIZWE CAR RENTAL

VICTORIA HOTEL BREDASDORP

PROTEA HOTEL - TRANSIT

SOUTHERN SUN HOTEL INTERESTS

WALKERSONS COUNTRY MANOR

PROTEA HOTEL - TYGER VALLEY

SPRINGBOK ATLAS

WESTIN GRAND CAPE TOWN ARABELLA QUAYS

PROTEA HOTEL - UMFOLOZI RIVER

SPRINGBOK HOTEL

WESTVILLE HOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - UMHLANGA

STANDARD HOTEL

WHISPERING PINES COUNTRY ESTATE

PROTEA HOTEL - UMHLANGA RIDGE

ST JAMES OF KNYSNA

WHISTLETREE LODGE

PROTEA HOTEL - UPINGTON

STOEP CATERING CC T/A KRAAL KOMBUIS

WILD COAST SUN HOTEL & CASINO

PROTEA HOTEL - VICTORIA JUNCTION

STORMSRIVER ADVENTURES

WILDERNESS MANZENGWENYA

PROTEA HOTEL - WILLOW LAKE

SUN CITY CABANAS

WINCHESTER MANSIONS HOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - WINKLER

SUN CITY CASCADES

WINDMILL LODGE

PROTEA HOTEL - WANDERERS

SUN CITY HOTEL

WINDMILL RIDGE

PROTEA HOTEL - WATERFRONT

SUN CITY PALACE

WORCESTER CASINO

PROTEA HOTEL - WATERFRONT RICHARDSBAY

SWARTBERG HOTEL

PROTEA HOTEL - WITBANK

TAU GAME LODGE

QUARTERS HOTEL

TEMPEST CAR HIRE

QUEENS HOTEL - OUDTSHOORN

THE ARABELLA  WESTERN CAPE HOTEL & SPA
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KEY CONTACT

TELEPHONE

FAX

WEBSITES

Department of Agriculture, Forestry & Fischers

012 319 6000

012 319 0000

www.daff.gov.za

Department of Arts & Culture

012 441 3000

012 441 3699

www.dac.gov.za

Department of Basic Education

012 357 3000

012 357 6260

www.education.gov.za

Department of Communications

012 421 7073

012 423 8115

www.doc.gov.za

Department of Cooperative Governance & Traditional Affairs

012 334 0600

012 334 0603

www.cogta.gov.za

Department of Correctional Services

012 307 2000

012 328 6149

www.doc.gov.za

Department of Defence

012 355 6101

012 347 0118

www.mil.za

Department of Economic Development

012 394 1006

012 394 0255

www.economic.gov.za

Department of Energy

012 444 4253

086 581 8505

www.energy.gov.za

Department of Environmental Affairs

012 310 3911

012 322 2682

www.environment.gov.za

Department of Government Communication & Information
System

012 314 2911

012 323 3416

www.gsic.gov.za

Department of Health

012 395 9000

012 395 9019

www.doh.gov.za

Department of Higher Education & Training

012 312 5911

012 321 6770

www.dhet.gov.za

Department f Home Affairs

012 810 8911

012 810 7567

www.dha.gov.za

Department of Human Settlements

012 421 1311

012 341 8510

www.dhs.gov.za

Department of International Realtions & Cooperation

012 351 1000

012 329 1000

www.dirco.gov.za

Department of Justice & Constitutional Development

012 315 1111

012 315 1112

www.justice.gov.za

Department of labour

012 309 4000

012 320 2059

www.labour.gov.za

Deaprtment of Mineral Resources

012 444 3956

012 324 2228

www.dmr.gov.za

Department of National Treasury

012 315 5111

012 315 5126

www.treasury.gov.za

Public Administration Leadership & Management Academy

012 441 6000

012 441 6777

www.palama.gov.za

Department of Public Enterprises

012 431 1000

012 342 1093

www.dpe.gov.za

Department of Public Services & Administration

012 336 1183

012 336 1831

www.dpsa.gov.za

Department of Public Service Commission

012 352 1000

012 325 8382

www.psc.gov.za

Department of Public Works

012 337 3000

012 323 2856

www.publicworks.gov.za

Department of Rural Development & land Reform

012 312 9319

012 323 3306

www.ruraldevelopment.gov.za

Department of Science & Technology

012 843 6300

Department of Social Development

012 312 7500

012 312 7943

www.dsd.gov.za

Department of State Security Agency

012 367 0700

012 367 0749

www.ssa.gov.za

Department of Sport Recreation South Africa

012 304 5000

012 323 7196

www.srsa.gov.za

Department Of Tourism

012 444 6000

012 444 7000

www.tourism.gov.za

Department of Trade & Industry

0861 843 384

0861 843 888

www.thedti.gov.za

Department of Traditional Affairs

012 334 4972

0862 749 000

www.dta.gov.za

Department of Transport

012 309 3000

012 328 7891

www.dot.gov.za

Department of Water Affairs

012 336 8387

012 336 8664

www.dwa.gov.za

Department for Women, Children & People with Disabilities

012 359 0013

012 426 2203

www.dwcpd.gov.za

The Presidency

012 300 5200

012 323 8246

www.thepresidency.gov.za

South African Tourism

011 895 3000

011 895 3001

www.southafrica.net

Brand South Africa

011 483 0122

011 483 0124

www.brandsouthafrica.com

NATIONAL GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENTS

www.dst.gov.za

STATE AGENCIES AND PARASTATALS
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Cultural, Arts, Sports and Tourism Training Authority
(CATHSSETA)

011 217 0600

011 783 7745

www.cathsseta.org.za

Tourism Grading Council of South Africa (TGCSA)

011 895 3000

086 517 7410

www.tourismgrading.co.za

Civil Aviation Authority (CAA)

011 545 1000

011 545 1465

www.caa.co.za

Independent Directorate Complaints (IDC)

012 392 0400

012 392 3116

www.icd.gov.za

South African Revenue Service (SARSA)

012 422 4000

012 422 5181

www.sars.gov.za

South African Secret Services

012 367 0700

012 367 0749

www.sass.gov.za

Statistics South Africa

012 310 8911

012 310 8500

www.stassa.gov.za

Cape Routes Unlimited

021 405 4500

021 426 5640

www.tourismcapetown.co.za

Eastern Cape Tourism Authority

043 742 4450

043 701 9600

www.ectourism.co.za

Free State Tourism Authority

051 411 4300

051 444 0297

www.freestatetourism.org

Gauteng Tourism Authority

011 639 1600

0867867170

www.visitgauteng.net

Limpopo Tourism Authority

011 085 2500

015 293 3655

www.golimpopo.com

KwaZulu Natal Tourism Authority

031 366 7500

031 305 6693

www.zulu.org.za

Mpumalanga Tourism and Parks

013 759 5300

013 752 4186

www.mpumalanga.com

North West Parks and Tourism Board

018 397 1500

018 397 1660

www.tourismnorthwest.co.za

Northern Cape Tourism

053 832 2657

053 831 2937

www.northencape.org.za

Gauteng Economic Development Agency

011 833 8750

011 833 8930

www.geda.co.za

Eastern Cape Development Corporation

043 704 5600

043 704 5700

www.ecdc.co.za

Trade and Investment KwaZulu Natal

031 368 9600

031 368 5888

www.tikzn.co.za

Free State Development Corporation

051 400 0800

051 447 0929

www.fdc.co.za

Mpumalanga Economic Growth Agency

013 656 3231

013 6563241

www.mega.gov.za

Invest North-West

014 594 2570

014 590 2575

www.inw.org.za

Northern Cape Economic Development Agency

053 833 1503

053 833 1390

www.nceda.co.za

Western Cape Investment Trade Promotion Agency

021 487 8600

021 487 8700

www.wesgro.org.za

Trade and Investment Limpopo

015 295 5171

015 295 5197

www.til.co.za

Business Trust

011 612 2000

0865041765

www.btrust.org.za

Development Bank Southern Africa

011 313 3911

011 313 3086

www.dbsa.org

Human Science Research Council

012 302 2000

012 302 2001

www.hsrc.ac.za

Industrial Development Corporation

011 269 3000

011 269 3116

www.idc.co.za

Ithala Development Finance Corporation

031 907 8911

031 907 5685

www.ithala.co.za

Khula Interprise Finance

0860054852

012 394 6901

www.khula.org.za

Lotteries Distribution Agency

086 006 5383

012 432 1387

www.nlb.org.za

National Empowerment Fund

011 305 8000

011 305 8001

www.nefcorp.co.za

Scientific and Industrial Research

012 841 2911

012 349 1153

www.csir.co.za

South Africa Weather Service

012 367 6000

012 367 6300

www.weathersa.co.za

Small Enterprise Development Agency

0860 103 703

012 441 1000

www.seda.org.za

Tourism Enterprise Partnership

011 880 3790

011 808 2740

www.tep.co.za

PROVINCIAL TOURISM AUTHORITIES

SOUTH FRICAN TRADE & INVESTMENT AGENCIES

OTHER USEFUL CONTACTS
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PHYSICAL ADDRESS
Leriba Lodge
245 End Street
Clubview
0157

POSTAL ADDRESS
PO Box 11655
Centurion
0046

Tel: +27 12 654 7525
Fax: +27 12 654 7394
E-mail: tourism@tbcsa.travel
E-mail: tomsa@tbcsa.co.za

www.tbcsa.travel / www.tomsa.co.za

